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           1                    P R O C E E D I N G S

           2             (Transcript continues in sequence from Volume

           3   6.)

           4             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Good morning, everyone.

           5   Glad to see you made it here on this rainy Tuesday [sic]

           6   morning.

           7             We are reconvening the hearing for Aqua

           8   Utilities, Docket No. 100330.  We're in the middle of

           9   the cross-examination of Ms. Kimberly Dismukes.

          10             THE WITNESS:  Dismukes.

          11             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Dismukes.  I apologize.

          12             THE WITNESS:  That's okay.

          13             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Before we start that, Mr.

          14   Jaeger, is there any preliminary matters we need to

          15   address?

          16             MR. JAEGER:  Yes, Chairman.  Quite a few

          17   things have happened since we adjourned, several

          18   preliminary matters.

          19             First of all, the parties and Staff have all

          20   agreed that Poucher, Robert Poucher and Denise

          21   Vandiver's testimony, that's the, her rebuttal testimony

          22   and Poucher's supplemental rebuttal and supplemental

          23   direct, can be admitted, and that they can be excused.

          24   And also that their depositions and exhibits can be

          25   admitted in lieu of cross.
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           1             The Commissioners have all indicated that they

           2   have no cross for these two witnesses, and so Staff --

           3   at the appropriate time, we would move in Ms. Vandiver,

           4   Mr. Poucher's, and all exhibits and depositions.  And,

           5   but they could be excused, if that's your pleasure.

           6             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  So when's the appropriate

           7   time to do that?

           8             MR. JAEGER:  Well, they -- when they come up

           9   in the natural order of the Prehearing Order we'll do

          10   that.

          11             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.

          12             MR. JAEGER:  They have a spot coming up after

          13   Staff testimony.

          14             The next thing we have is the Prehearing Order

          15   shows us doing the three Aqua witnesses on rebuttal, and

          16   then we're doing separate supplemental rebuttal.  All

          17   the parties have agreed that we can just take them up

          18   together, both their rebuttal and supplemental rebuttal.

          19   So we'll do them in the order listed but do them all at

          20   once.

          21             And, again, that'll be taken up at the very --

          22   you know, that, that will come up at the very end.

          23             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.

          24             MR. JAEGER:  And Staff has been trying to --

          25   you know, there is a question about the discovery from
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           1   AUF to YES and its admission.  Staff has several

           2   documents that it wanted in, and I think Mr. Curtin was

           3   wanting them all in, and Staff has no problem with that,

           4   but I don't know if he's worked out with Mr. May what

           5   can come in.  And it would greatly -- you know, Staff

           6   wouldn't have to -- it affects our cross-examination of

           7   Ms. Kurz if those documents do come in.  But that's

           8   something they need to see if we can work out before

           9   Ms. Kurz gets up on the stand.

          10             MR. CURTIN:  Mr. Jaeger, I think I just talked

          11   to Ms. Bennett.  I don't have a problem with your

          12   Interrogatory No. 40, I think it is.

          13             MR. JAEGER:  Yes.

          14             MR. CURTIN:  That can go in.  And Ms. Bennett

          15   showed me, I think, what you want to mark as 192.  I

          16   have no problem with that.  That was the response.  And

          17   then she showed me the documents you want in; that's no

          18   problem.  I think it was 192.

          19             MR. JAEGER:  Okay.  No.  That is 185.  And --

          20             MR. CURTIN:  No.  The request to produce, 192.

          21             MR. JAEGER:  And the request to produce, 192?

          22             MR. CURTIN:  That's what I was --

          23             MR. JAEGER:  That's another one, is 195.

          24   Okay.

          25             YES's response to AUF's second request for
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           1   production of documents, Nos. 50 through 53, that's 195.

           2   Is that what you're saying you have no problem with?

           3             MR. CURTIN:  I think you showed me 192.  I

           4   haven't seen 195.  If you want to show me 195, I'll take

           5   a look at it.

           6             MR. JAEGER:  195 is AUF's response to OPC's

           7   6th request, so that doesn't have anything --

           8             MR. CURTIN:  Let me look at it.

           9             MR. JAEGER:  Yeah.  We can do this offline, I

          10   think, and we can get that.

          11             MR. MAY:  At the appropriate time, Mr.

          12   Chairman, I might be able to short, short-circuit this

          13   whole process.  Aqua Utilities Florida has no problem in

          14   allowing all of the discovery that YES propounded on us

          15   into the record, so long as we can put all of the

          16   discovery responses we provided them into the record.

          17             MR. CURTIN:  And, like I said, I have no

          18   problem with that except for your supplemental

          19   supplemental response to the third set of

          20   interrogatories, because that was given after we took

          21   all the depositions of the party witnesses.  I did not

          22   have a chance to look at that response from, from Aqua

          23   and depose your witnesses on that.

          24             But as far -- you are right, Mr. Jaeger, it's

          25   195.  I have no problem with 195.  I misspoke on the
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           1   exhibit.  So I have no problem with I think what OPC

           2   wants -- I mean, excuse me, what Staff wants to put in.

           3   195 and Interrogatory No. 40 I have no problem with.

           4             MR. JAEGER:  I think earlier we also discussed

           5   the 186, Interrogatory 63 through 70.

           6             MR. CURTIN:  If you want to show, you want to

           7   show me that later on, I can probably agree to that,

           8   too.

           9             MR. JAEGER:  Okay.  We can do that on break.

          10             Okay.  Sorry, Chairman.  I --

          11             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  That's all right.  Let's

          12   move forward with the witness that we have on the stand.

          13   We'll probably take a first break somewhere, I don't

          14   know, around 11:00 or so.  And if you guys can work this

          15   stuff out during that break.

          16             MR. JAEGER:  Okay.  I believe, just two minor

          17   little things.  Ms. Bradley is trying to get in to see a

          18   doctor this afternoon, and she's asked that she be able

          19   to be excused to go to the doctor, if necessary.  And I

          20   think she would just waive any cross during that time

          21   while she was gone.

          22             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Do you have someone that is

          23   going to cover the questions you have to be asked, or

          24   are you just fine just waiving the cross, Ms. Bradley?

          25             MS. BRADLEY:  I think we're probably going to
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           1   still be on the Intervenors' testimony.  And since we're

           2   not allowed to ask any questions of those, I don't think

           3   I will miss anything.

           4             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.

           5             MS. BRADLEY:  I certainly think the other

           6   folks can handle it if -- I'll just be gone for like an

           7   hour and a half.

           8             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.

           9             MS. BRADLEY:  Thank you.

          10             MR. JAEGER:  And the last thing I have is YES

          11   wants to flip-flop Mr. Harpin and Ms. Kurz and have

          12   Shawn Harpin go first, and Aqua said that's fine with

          13   them, and it's okay with Staff.  So in the Prehearing

          14   Order we had Kim Kurz and then Shawn Harpin, and we're

          15   just going to flip-flop them and do Shawn Harpin first.

          16             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.

          17             MR. JAEGER:  That's all Staff had.

          18             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Any other preliminary

          19   matters?

          20             All right.  Mr. May.

          21             MR. MAY:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

          22                   EXAMINATION (CONTINUED)

          23   BY MR. MAY:

          24        Q    Good morning, Ms. Dismukes.

          25        A    Good morning.
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           1        Q    Welcome back.  I just had a couple of

           2   follow-up questions.

           3             When we concluded the hearing last Thursday,

           4   you and I were discussing your testimony on quality of

           5   service.  Specifically I was asking you about your

           6   testimony on page 22, lines 25 through 30.

           7        A    Okay.

           8        Q    Okay.  Your footnote No. 58 makes reference to

           9   a transcript of a Fort Myers customer hearing.  The Fort

          10   Myers customer service hearing was conducted on

          11   August 20, 2011; isn't that correct?

          12        A    I'll accept that, subject to check.

          13        Q    Okay.  And, again, I think I discussed with

          14   you that I was at that hearing, and I don't recall there

          15   being any customers testifying or appearing at that

          16   hearing.

          17        A    Are you talking about the informal customer --

          18        Q    I'm referring to your footnote, where you

          19   reference a quotation from the Fort Myers customer

          20   service hearing, and I'm trying to get some

          21   clarification.

          22             MS. CHRISTENSEN:  Can, can I get a page number

          23   on that?

          24             MR. MAY:  Sure.  Page 22, lines 25 through,

          25   through 30.  And there's a reference after the quotation
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           1   to a transcript of the Fort Myers customer service --

           2   excuse me -- the customer hearing.

           3             MS. CHRISTENSEN:  Right.  I think she's

           4   referring to customer meetings, not the service

           5   hearings.

           6   BY MR. MAY:

           7        Q    Okay.  Let me just clarify that for the

           8   record, and I think we can move through this pretty

           9   quickly.  But your references to the Fort Myers customer

          10   hearing is in fact the reference to the customer meeting

          11   that was conducted prior to the PAA order being

          12   protested; correct?

          13        A    That's correct.

          14        Q    Okay.  And from page 9 through 23 of your

          15   testimony, you make a number of references to customer

          16   hearings.  And I may have a series of questions that I

          17   need to ask you in order to make sure I understand the

          18   basis for your testimony, but in the interest of time,

          19   perhaps we could just clarify for the record with just a

          20   couple of questions.  So bear with me if I can just give

          21   it a try.

          22             On pages 9 through 23, when you make reference

          23   to a customer hearing, you're actually referring to the

          24   customer meetings that occurred prior to the PAA order

          25   being protested; correct?
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           1        A    Yes.  That's correct.

           2        Q    Okay.  And your citations to the customer

           3   hearings on pages 9 through 23 of your testimony are not

           4   made in reference to the ten customer hearings that were

           5   conducted by the Commission after the PAA order was

           6   protested; correct?

           7        A    That's correct.  Many of those happened after

           8   we filed prefiled testimony.

           9        Q    Okay.  Could you turn to page 19 of your

          10   testimony, ma'am, specifically referring to footnote No.

          11   42.

          12        A    Okay.

          13        Q    You reference a Gainesville customer hearing,

          14   but you're actually referencing a customer meeting;

          15   correct?

          16        A    That's correct.

          17        Q    And that meeting took place on October 21,

          18   2010?

          19        A    I'll accept that, subject to check.

          20        Q    Do you know how many people from Arredondo

          21   Farms testified or spoke at that customer meeting?

          22        A    No, I don't.

          23        Q    Subject to check, would it be five, two of

          24   which were husband and wife?

          25             MS. CHRISTENSEN:  I think the witness already
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           1   responded that she didn't know how many people testified

           2   to -- at Arredondo Farms, so asking specifics I'm not

           3   sure is appropriate.

           4             MR. MAY:  I'll withdraw that question.  I

           5   think the transcript of that customer meeting is in the

           6   record.

           7   BY MR. MAY:

           8        Q    Do you know whether the customer meeting in

           9   Gainesville that occurred on October 21st, 2010, took

          10   place prior to YES's intervention in this case?

          11        A    No, I don't.

          12        Q    Okay.  Ms. Dismukes, I want to take you back

          13   to our conversation last week when we were talking about

          14   rate case expense.  And you agreed, did you not, that

          15   the larger the volume of discovery in a rate case, the

          16   higher the rate case expense; correct?

          17        A    Yes, that can happen.

          18        Q    Okay.  I'm trying to put this rate case in

          19   context with some other PSC proceedings.  And I talked

          20   with you about a need determination filed by FPL

          21   regarding a nuclear power plant that was addressed by

          22   the Commission back in the 2007/2008 time frame.  Do you

          23   recall that line of questioning?

          24        A    Yes, I do.

          25        Q    And I think I asked you about whether you and
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           1   I had had this conversation regarding the discovery in

           2   that case in the last rate case, and you said you didn't

           3   recall that; correct?

           4        A    Could you repeat the question?

           5        Q    Sure.  Do you recall in the last case that you

           6   and I had a conversation regarding the scope of the

           7   discovery in the billion-dollar need determination for

           8   FPL?

           9        A    In the last rate case?

          10        Q    Yes.

          11        A    In the 2008 rate case?

          12        Q    Yes.

          13        A    No, I don't recall that.

          14        Q    Do you have your testimony from that last case

          15   before you?

          16        A    No, I don't.

          17        Q    Okay.  On page 819 of the transcript, I asked

          18   you, "Are you familiar with" -- excuse me.  "Are you

          19   aware of Florida Power & Light's request for a need

          20   determination of a nuclear power plant in Florida?"

          21             You answered, "I am aware of it generally,

          22   yes."

          23             Question, "Would you agree that the

          24   anticipated cost of those nuclear power plants would

          25   exceed $10 billion?"
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           1             Answer, "At least."

           2             Question, "And you would agree that the rate

           3   case requested by Aqua is about $8 million?"

           4             Answer, "That's correct.  It's 8 million,

           5   8.4."

           6             Question, "Do you know how many

           7   interrogatories and requests for production of documents

           8   the OPC served on FPL in the course of that

           9   billion-dollar rate, need determination proceeding?"

          10             Answer, "No, I don't."

          11             "Subject to check, would you agree that OPC

          12   served two interrogatories and 17 PODs on FPL in that

          13   proceeding?"

          14             Answer, "Yes."

          15             So I want to ask you again, do you recall our

          16   conversation?

          17        A    I do now.

          18             MR. MAY:  Okay.  Just so our record is

          19   correct, I'd like to present the witness with a, with an

          20   exhibit.

          21             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Mr. Jaeger, we're up to

          22   Exhibit 328; is that correct?

          23             MR. JAEGER:  328 is correct.

          24             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Thank you, sir.

          25             Mr. May, you got a title for this?
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           1             MR. MAY:  OPC -- excuse me.  OPC's Discovery

           2   Propounded on FPL in Docket 070650.

           3             MS. CHRISTENSEN:  I'm going to object as to

           4   relevance.  The amount of discovery or lack thereof in

           5   another docket, I don't see the relevance as far as, as

           6   far as this case.  It's not even a similar type

           7   proceeding.  You know, this is a rate matter and the

           8   other thing is a need determination.

           9             You know, if he wants to compare it to the FPL

          10   rate case, I'm sure we could go into the number of

          11   interrogatories and discovery served in the rate case.

          12   But relevance, I don't see the relevance of this.

          13             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  I want to see where this is

          14   going.

          15             Mr. May.

          16             (Exhibit 328 marked for identification.)

          17   BY MR. MAY:

          18        Q    Ms. Dismukes, do you have the exhibit marked

          19   as Exhibit No. 328 before you?

          20        A    Yes.

          21        Q    You're an expert in rate case matters, are you

          22   not?

          23        A    Not all rate case matters, but generally

          24   speaking I testify in a lot of rate cases.

          25        Q    Would you consider yourself an expert in
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           1   utility regulation?

           2        A    Yes.

           3        Q    Okay.  What does this composite exhibit -- in

           4   your professional expert opinion, what is this composite

           5   exhibit?

           6        A    It appears to be a notice of service in

           7   connection with the petition to determine the need for

           8   the Turkey Point Nuclear Units 6 and 7 in connection

           9   with Florida Power & Light Company, Docket No. 070650,

          10   dated December 6th, 2007.

          11        Q    Do you know if the Office of Public Counsel --

          12   you're testifying on behalf of the Office of Public

          13   Counsel; correct?

          14        A    Yes, that's correct.

          15        Q    Do you know if the Office of Public Counsel

          16   served any other discovery on FPL in this billion-dollar

          17   rate case, other than two interrogatories and 17

          18   requests for production of documents?

          19        A    Well, first of all, it wasn't a rate case.

          20   And, no, I don't.

          21             MR. MAY:  Okay.  I have no further questions.

          22             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Thank you.  I guess we go to

          23   Staff now?

          24             MS. BENNETT:  Yes.  Thank you, Chair.

          25                         EXAMINATION
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           1   BY MS. BENNETT:

           2        Q    Ms. Dismukes, my name is Lisa Bennett.  We

           3   spoke over the telephone by deposition earlier this

           4   year.

           5             I want to ask you --

           6             MS. BENNETT:  Oh, first of all, Mr. Chair, I

           7   have some exhibits to hand out to the witness.

           8             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.

           9             MS. BENNETT:  An exhibit.

          10             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Ms. Bennett, it looks like

          11   you're going to get Exhibit No. 329.

          12             MS. BENNETT:  That would be the Late-Filed

          13   Exhibit No. 8 to Kim Dismukes' November 9th Deposition.

          14             (Exhibit 329 marked for identification.)

          15   BY MS. BENNETT:

          16        Q    Okay.  First I want to talk to you about

          17   Issues 1 and 2, which are quality of service and OPC's

          18   recommendation regarding the quality of service.

          19             I want you to turn to page 8 of your

          20   testimony, lines 17 and 18, and let me know when you're

          21   there.

          22        A    I'm there.

          23        Q    And there you recommend that the Commission

          24   order the company to gather state-specific call center

          25   data on a going-forward basis if the cost of doing so is
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           1   reasonable; correct?

           2        A    Yes.

           3        Q    Are you recommending that this requirement be

           4   implemented on a permanent basis?

           5        A    Yes.

           6        Q    Do you have a recommendation regarding the

           7   cost level that you believe would be reasonable to

           8   implement this type of requirement?

           9        A    I do not have a recommendation, but

          10   nevertheless -- I don't have a specific recommendation.

          11   But the, the -- as I understand it, when the calls come

          12   in to the call center, the company can identify the

          13   account number so that they can determine where the

          14   calls are coming from so that they -- to me, it doesn't

          15   sound like it would be an expensive endeavor, given the

          16   fact that it would be more than likely computer,

          17   something that could be done through the computer in

          18   terms of gathering the call data and determining where

          19   it came from.

          20        Q    And I really wanted to hone in, I know we

          21   didn't have a specific dollar amount that you're

          22   recommending, but I wanted to hone in on our discussion

          23   in the deposition about the percentage of, I believe you

          24   said A&G.  A&G stands for --

          25        A    Administrative and general.
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           1        Q    -- administrative and general expenses.  And

           2   you recommended that 10% was probably too high?

           3        A    That's correct.

           4        Q    But you were comfortable with 1 to 2%; is that

           5   correct?

           6        A    Do you have a reference to my deposition?

           7        Q    Yes.  If you would look at your deposition,

           8   pages 108 and 109.

           9        A    (Reviewing document.)  I don't see the 1 to

          10   2%.

          11        Q    Okay.  But you would agree that 10% was too

          12   high, and then I think we discussed that 5% was too

          13   high; is that correct?

          14        A    That's correct.

          15        Q    Is 1% too high?  Let me refer you specifically

          16   to your response on page 109, lines 10 through 17.

          17   Perhaps you could read that into the record.

          18        A    "But they have, they have got a lot of

          19   administrative and general expenses, and I have no basis

          20   to even estimate what it costs.  I mean, it could cost

          21   $20,000, and I'd say that's definitely worth it.  It

          22   could cost half a million.  That might be worth it.  But

          23   if it gets up there, you know, more than that, it's

          24   less, you know -- it would not be easy for me to say

          25   that would be a worthwhile endeavor.  I just don't
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           1   know."

           2        Q    Okay.  And do you agree with the testimony you

           3   provided in the deposition?

           4        A    Yes.

           5        Q    Okay.  Let's move on then.  We also discussed,

           6   and you might want to leave your book open, your

           7   deposition book open.  When determining a call, call

           8   center performance standards, you recommended that the

           9   Commission start looking at other jurisdictions and

          10   perhaps talk to them about standards they have adopted.

          11   Do you remember that discussion?

          12        A    Yes.

          13        Q    And during our discussion I asked for examples

          14   of other states who had acceptable call center

          15   standards.  Do you recall that discussion?  And you were

          16   going to provide me with a late-filed exhibit.

          17        A    Yes.  I don't recall that it was acceptable

          18   call center standards, but did I have any information

          19   about call center statistics in other states.

          20        Q    And you provided a copy of the late-filed

          21   exhibit, which is now Exhibit 329?

          22        A    Yes.

          23        Q    And regarding that Exhibit 329, that's the

          24   Connecticut Light & Power Company call center statistics

          25   for 2008 and 2009; is that correct?
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           1        A    Yes, that's correct.

           2        Q    Are the statistics represented in Exhibit 329

           3   reasonable results for a utility call center?

           4        A    I don't know the answer to that question.

           5   These are actually the actual results.  And there, in

           6   some instances, would be a difference between the

           7   statistics that an electric company would generate

           8   versus what a water company would generate.  In

           9   particular, the average handle time per call, I believe,

          10   would be typically longer for an electric utility

          11   because they're more complex, they have more complex

          12   customers than a water utility.

          13        Q    Okay.  My next question, I'd like you to turn

          14   to page 27 of your testimony, lines 7 through 9.

          15        A    I do have some information in terms of where

          16   you might be able to obtain call center and benchmarking

          17   data that would be useful to the water industry.

          18        Q    I would love to hear it.  Thank you.

          19        A    Okay.  The American Waterworks Association

          20   publishes a benchmarking water utility customer

          21   relations best practices.  And it's, if you're a member,

          22   it's $29.

          23             But basically there's a little description

          24   here of what's involved.  It talks about customer

          25   satisfaction is important to water utilities to minimize
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           1   customer complaints and associated costs, maintain

           2   customer goodwill, and to increase customer support for

           3   utility improvement initiatives.

           4             This project identifies best practices in

           5   major utility customer service areas.  Call center,

           6   meter reading, billing, payment processing, credit

           7   collections, and customer related field services.

           8   High-performing organizations were identified based upon

           9   specific customer service measurement metrics and/or

          10   reputation for superior customer service, such as

          11   winning recognized customer satisfaction awards.

          12             The report will give you tools to measure a

          13   utility's customer service performance using

          14   standardized customer service metrics developed for the

          15   research -- developed for this research study.

          16        Q    Thank you.  Let's go ahead and move on to the

          17   next set of questions I have.

          18        A    Okay.

          19        Q    And I appreciate you providing that to us.

          20             I'd like to have you turn to page 27 of your

          21   testimony, lines 7 through 9.  And, again, we discussed

          22   this in your deposition.

          23        A    Okay.

          24        Q    There you state that, while the Commission's

          25   monitoring plan has forced the company to take steps to
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           1   make improvements, the overall perception of the quality

           2   of service by customers is still poor.  Is that correct?

           3        A    Yes.

           4        Q    How much weight do you believe a customer's

           5   perception of quality of service holds in comparison to

           6   the quality of service metrics and statistics?

           7        A    We did discuss this at my deposition.  I think

           8   the customer's perception is very important.  It gives

           9   the Commission an indication of what the customers

          10   perceive the utility -- one of their main goals is not

          11   only to provide good quality water but to also satisfy

          12   their customers.  And without customer satisfaction,

          13   there's always going to be problems.

          14             And in my deposition I indicated that if you

          15   had to give a weighting in terms of what percent should

          16   be placed on the metrics versus what percent should be

          17   placed upon the customer's perception, I used 50% on

          18   each.

          19        Q    And thank you.  That answered my next two

          20   questions, so we will move on to Issue 14.  Again, this

          21   is something we talked about in your deposition about

          22   the billing determinants and your recommendations

          23   regarding that.  I believe that's beginning on page 103

          24   of your testimony.

          25        A    Okay.
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           1        Q    Okay.  There -- I'm going to summarize.

           2   You're recommending that test year revenues should be

           3   increased to reverse the test year impact of reduced

           4   usage that you believe are due either to AUF's high

           5   rates, poor customer service, or factors that you

           6   believe are beyond the control of the customers.  Is

           7   that a correct summary of your testimony?

           8        A    Yes.

           9        Q    And to determine the consumption or billing

          10   determinants reduction in your testimony, you reviewed

          11   an AUF document called a budget variance report; is that

          12   correct?

          13        A    Yes.

          14        Q    And you examined the utility's budget variance

          15   reports for the test year period; is that correct?

          16        A    That's correct.

          17        Q    Okay.  During the test year the utility sold

          18   fewer gallons than it had budgeted; correct?

          19        A    That's correct.

          20        Q    In addition, for several months in the test

          21   year, these reports indicate that the utility missed its

          22   revenue, revenue targets due to consumption reductions;

          23   is that correct?

          24        A    Yes.

          25        Q    And for several months the difference between
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           1   the budget and the actual is explained by the customers

           2   in the Scottish Highlands service area digging wells

           3   throughout the subdivision; is that correct?

           4        A    Yes.

           5        Q    And it's your belief that this revenue loss is

           6   either due to the company's high rates or its poor

           7   customer service or factors that are beyond the control

           8   of the customers; is that correct?

           9        A    Yes.

          10        Q    Okay.  Is it correct that during our

          11   deposition you did not identify a methodology that you

          12   used to equate those different factors to the loss of

          13   revenue?

          14        A    That's correct.  No.  There is no way to

          15   really identify precisely how much the revenue loss is

          16   associated with each one of those individual components.

          17        Q    Okay.  And so the factual support that you

          18   make, used for the recommended consumption reduction is

          19   from the utility's budget variance report; isn't that

          20   correct?

          21        A    Well, yes.  And also the customer testimony.

          22        Q    Okay.  And you're proposing an adjustment to

          23   the utility's billing determinants that would add back

          24   in the reduction in the water sold that's attributable

          25   to the Scottish Highlands customers; is that correct?
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           1        A    Yes.

           2        Q    Okay.  And your proposed adjustment to

           3   increase the utility's billing determinants would have

           4   the effect of increasing test year revenues; is that

           5   correct?

           6        A    That's correct.

           7        Q    Do you think it's possible that a utility

           8   could have high rates purely due to the characteristics

           9   of a system?  For instance, having a small customer base

          10   and high costs?

          11        A    Purely due to that one factor?  I think

          12   perhaps on an individual -- that's a tough question.  I

          13   know we talked about it in my deposition.

          14             I mean, clearly, if, if you have a small

          15   customer base and a lot of piping, the high rates could

          16   be -- that could clearly be a factor.

          17        Q    Okay.  Thank you.  You would also agree with

          18   me that ratemaking is prospective in basis; correct?

          19        A    Yes.

          20        Q    Let's consider for a moment the first 12

          21   months that the new rates would be in effect after the

          22   Commission makes its final vote.  Do you believe that

          23   after the Commission makes its final vote, the customers

          24   who have installed irrigation wells will stop using the

          25   wells and return to Aqua's -- to Aqua?
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           1        A    Realistically, no.

           2        Q    Do you have any reason to believe that the

           3   number of gallons sold during the year as reported in

           4   the utility's MFRs is not reflective of the actual

           5   number of gallons sold during the test year?

           6        A    No.

           7        Q    On page 90 of your testimony, line 14, let me

           8   know when you're there.

           9        A    Okay.

          10        Q    There you state that, "Moreover, the company

          11   is authorized by the Commission to earn a return on

          12   equity, which includes a component to compensate

          13   stakeholders for risk."  Is that correct?

          14        A    Yes.

          15        Q    Is it true that rates should be set to provide

          16   a utility the opportunity to recover its costs,

          17   including an appropriate return on common equity?

          18        A    That's correct, yes.

          19        Q    And how would, how would the company have --

          20   how would a company have an opportunity to earn a fair

          21   return on rates if rates are used which impute revenues

          22   greater than those expected to be generated during the

          23   test year?

          24        A    Well, they could take other measures to either

          25   increase revenue by providing better customer service,
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           1   or to reduce expenses consistent with the level of the

           2   revenue reduction.

           3        Q    Also on page 90, line 16, you state that

           4   there's an inherent risk in any company -- I'm sorry.

           5   "An inherent risk in any company is the loss of revenue

           6   due to a variety of reasons, like economic downturns,

           7   competition, conservation, and alternative suppliers."

           8   Is that correct?

           9        A    Yes.

          10        Q    The risk associated with a utility's loss of

          11   revenue that you're referring to on line 16 is the risk

          12   that revenues will not be achieved at the level at which

          13   they were set; is that correct?

          14        A    That's correct, yes.

          15        Q    Isn't it true that you're proposing a built-in

          16   loss of revenue by imputing revenues above those

          17   expected to be generated by the rates?

          18        A    Could you repeat the question?

          19        Q    Sure.  Isn't it true that you are proposing a

          20   built-in loss of revenue by imputing revenues above

          21   those expected to be generated by the rates?

          22        A    I am recommending that the Commission impute

          23   revenues associated with the loss in revenues due to

          24   poor customer service, poor quality of service, et

          25   cetera.
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           1        Q    Okay.  In your opinion, do investors expect

           2   utility commissions will set rates using a level of

           3   revenues the Commission knows are insufficient to allow

           4   the utility to earn its required return?

           5        A    I wouldn't necessarily, necessarily look at it

           6   from that perspective.  The, the way that I'm looking at

           7   it from is that customers made these decisions because

           8   of the high rates, the poor customer service, the bad

           9   billing practices, which are within control of the

          10   company.  Customers cannot change that.  That's

          11   something that the company has to change.

          12        Q    Okay.  In your opinion, if the Commission were

          13   to set rates using --

          14             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Ms. Bennett, can I get you

          15   to pull that mike down a little bit?  You're a little

          16   hard to hear.

          17             MS. BENNETT:  Okay.

          18   BY MS. BENNETT:

          19        Q    In your opinion, if the Commission were to set

          20   rates using revenues greater than those expected to be

          21   generated at allowed rates, would that increase

          22   regulatory risk?

          23        A    If the Commission increased revenues greater

          24   than?

          25        Q    Than those expected to be generated at allowed
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           1   rates.

           2        A    No.

           3        Q    It would not increase regulatory risk?

           4        A    If they increased -- in other --

           5        Q    If the -- let me, let me state it again.

           6        A    Okay.  Thanks.

           7        Q    In your opinion, if the Commission were to set

           8   rates using revenue that was greater than those that

           9   were expected to be generated at allowed rates, would

          10   that increase regulatory risk?

          11        A    That would increase regulatory risk.  But let

          12   me point out that the adjustment that I am recommending

          13   relative to the impact on Aqua America is very small.

          14   It is a .02% -- it would affect their return on equity

          15   by .02%.

          16        Q    I next want to talk to you about Issue 21 and

          17   your recommended adjustments regarding bad debt expense.

          18   And we, again, talked about this in your deposition.

          19             Would -- oh, you'll probably want to turn to

          20   page 83 of your testimony.

          21        A    Okay.

          22        Q    Okay.  Specifically lines 16 and 17 as we

          23   talk.  Would an accurate characterization of your

          24   testimony here be that Aqua's billing, customer service,

          25   and meter reading practices contribute to the test year
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           1   level of bad debt expense?

           2        A    Yes.

           3        Q    Isn't it true that there is no way to quantify

           4   how AUF's billing practices, meter reading practices,

           5   and customer service practices impact bad debt expense?

           6        A    That's correct.

           7        Q    Okay.  The last set of questions I'm going to

           8   ask you deal with your rate case sharing recommendation.

           9   And we didn't talk about this in the deposition, but I

          10   do want to explore it a little bit more with you.

          11             First of all, you recommend that certain rate

          12   case expenses be removed, and you could turn to page 91

          13   of your testimony to confirm that.  I believe it's 91

          14   through 96 that you talk about expenses being removed.

          15        A    Yes.

          16        Q    And isn't it true that those expenses that

          17   you're recommending be removed are, you're recommending

          18   because they were what you consider unreasonable

          19   expenses?

          20        A    That's correct.

          21        Q    Okay.  Do I understand correctly that you also

          22   propose that the rate case expense be shared 50/50

          23   between the ratepayers and the shareholders?

          24        A    That's correct; the prudent rate case expense.

          25        Q    That was my next question.  Is that shared
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           1   rate case expense to be calculated after the

           2   disallowance of those expenses that you talk about on

           3   page 91 through 96?

           4        A    Yes.

           5        Q    And this is because, this 50/50 sharing is

           6   because you believe that rate case expense benefits both

           7   the ratepayers -- well, actually the ratepayers, the

           8   utility, and the shareholders; is that correct?

           9        A    That's correct.  Predominantly it benefits the

          10   shareholders.

          11        Q    I'm correct that the examples of benefits to

          12   ratepayers include that the utility is financially

          13   sound, it can provide uninterrupted service, and that

          14   finance -- it can finance needed improvements; is that

          15   correct?

          16        A    Yes.  I would say predominantly financing

          17   needed improvements.

          18        Q    And the utility itself benefits from the rate

          19   case because it can cover its costs; is that correct?

          20   The utility itself would benefit from a rate case

          21   because it can cover its expenses; is that correct?

          22        A    That's correct, yes.

          23        Q    And then you explain that shareholders also

          24   benefit from a rate case since they're likely, more

          25   likely to earn a reasonable rate of return on their
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           1   investment; is that correct?

           2        A    That's correct.  I don't know I say that in my

           3   testimony though.

           4        Q    Okay.  You've personally participated in rate

           5   proceedings in a number of other states; is that

           6   correct?

           7        A    Yes.

           8        Q    And I believe in your testimony you state that

           9   Minnesota, Illinois, and New Jersey have also required a

          10   50/50 sharing of rate case expense; is that correct?

          11        A    Yes, that's correct.

          12        Q    Was that by rule or by order that they

          13   required sharing?

          14        A    I believe it's by -- it's not by rule, but

          15   it's by the Commission's orders.

          16        Q    Based upon your participation in rate

          17   proceedings in other states, do you know if any other

          18   state considers some type of market rate or average rate

          19   of compensation for rate case professionals?

          20        A    Not off the top of my head.

          21        Q    Okay.  Isn't it true that historically Florida

          22   employs a prudency review for determining whether or not

          23   to allow rate case expense?

          24        A    Yes.

          25        Q    And you would agree with me that the decision
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           1   of prudence is one that the Commission must make based

           2   on the record before it; is that correct?

           3        A    That's correct.

           4        Q    Have you had an opportunity to review --

           5   excuse me.  Have you had an opportunity to review the

           6   testimony of Mr. Szczygiel and Ms. Vandiver in this

           7   case?

           8        A    Yes, I have.

           9        Q    Isn't it true that these two witnesses apply

          10   the prudency standards to Aqua's requested rate case

          11   expenses?

          12        A    Yes, I believe they do.

          13        Q    And, for instance, Ms. Vandiver uses the 2010

          14   Florida Bar survey to offer her views and opinions of

          15   what is a prudent and reasonable cost for legal services

          16   in this rate case; is that correct?

          17        A    Yes.

          18        Q    Mr. Szczygiel uses the same Bar study for a

          19   different purpose in his testimony; is that correct?

          20        A    Yes.

          21        Q    And prudence of a utility's decisions are

          22   decided on a case-by-case basis; is that correct?

          23        A    Yes, they are.

          24             MS. BENNETT:  That's all the questions I have.

          25             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Commissioners?
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           1             Commissioner Balbis.

           2             COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

           3   And thank you, Ms. Dismukes, for your testimony.

           4             I think you hit upon what I feel is one of the

           5   most important aspects as far as the questions that I

           6   had concerning Aqua's operations and costs.

           7             A few questions, mainly focusing on the O&M

           8   expenses.  Did you review Aqua's O&M expenses?

           9             THE WITNESS:  In terms of from an audit

          10   perspective, no.  But from a -- let me start back.

          11             COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  As far as from, in their

          12   MFRs, as far as the schedules that list the test year

          13   and the projected expenses?

          14             THE WITNESS:  Yes.

          15             COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  Okay.  I have a couple

          16   of questions for you about that.  I'm not going to -- I

          17   don't have any questions on the costs, salaries, and

          18   wages for employees, officers, et cetera, of those that

          19   are actually doing the work at the utility for Aqua

          20   Florida.  What I want to focus on is Account No. 634 and

          21   636, which are the contractual services management fees

          22   and contractual services other.

          23             Are those two account numbers, do those deal

          24   with what you consider affiliated charges or overhead?

          25             THE WITNESS:  That's -- yes, sir.
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           1             COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  Okay.  Excuse me.  Okay.

           2   So if you go to page 40 of your testimony, you include a

           3   quote on lines 17 to 25, quoting, I guess, a Commission

           4   order previously where you state on -- or it's quoted on

           5   line 19 that "it is the utility's burden to prove that

           6   its costs are reasonable, and following this burden is

           7   even greater when the transaction is between related

           8   parties."  Would you consider these affiliated charges

           9   between related parties?

          10             THE WITNESS:  Yes, that's what they are.

          11             COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  Okay.  And then if you

          12   can clarify, on page 42 of your testimony, starting on

          13   line 20, where you state, "Thus, of the total operations

          14   and maintenance and administration -- administrative and

          15   general expenses," et cetera, and then going to the next

          16   page, 43, line 2, "Therefore, 67% of costs included in

          17   the test year are directly incurred by the individual

          18   water and wastewater systems."  Could you explain that?

          19   Does that mean that 33% are overhead costs or affiliated

          20   charges, or what does that mean?

          21             THE WITNESS:  Yes.  It's 20.6% of the costs

          22   are charged from ASI and AAI, which are the two

          23   parent -- it's the parent company and the service

          24   organization.  And then 12.4% is charged from AUF.  So

          25   that, those are charges that are booked on Aqua
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           1   Florida's books, as opposed to being allocated from an

           2   affiliate.  And then the 67% are those that are directly

           3   incurred by the individual water and wastewater systems.

           4             COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  So would it be correct

           5   to say that 33% is what you would consider overhead or,

           6   or no?

           7             THE WITNESS:  I would consider 20.6% to be

           8   overhead.

           9             COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  Okay.

          10             THE WITNESS:  The other 12%, or like the

          11   administrative and general type expenses at the AUF

          12   level.

          13             COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  Okay.  And would you

          14   agree that mainly Aqua, in order to meet that burden of

          15   proof, included comparisons of hourly rates for various

          16   employees, whether accountants, attorneys, engineers for

          17   their affiliated charges?

          18             THE WITNESS:  Yes.  Mr. Szczygiel performed

          19   that analysis.

          20             COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  Okay.  But you performed

          21   a detailed peer analysis of similar utilities in similar

          22   locations to kind of compare what the overhead charges

          23   were, or affiliated charges; is that correct?

          24             THE WITNESS:  Yes.  That's what I did.  I

          25   looked at utilities, as you indicated, in the same, the
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           1   same counties that had similar characteristics and

           2   eliminated a lot of problems that the Commission had

           3   identified in the past with my peer analysis.

           4             COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  Okay.  And I apologize

           5   for having you rehash a lot of this, but it's been a

           6   week since you've been before us.  So --

           7             THE WITNESS:  That's fine.

           8             COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  -- I just want to make

           9   sure I understand.

          10             So then if you go to page 77 of your testimony

          11   where you list the results of your peer analysis, am I

          12   reading correctly on lines 10 and 11 where you have, "On

          13   a per customer basis, the company's expenses are 62%

          14   higher than the peer group average"?

          15             THE WITNESS:  That's correct.  And that's just

          16   for the administrative and general expenses.  It doesn't

          17   consider O&M or the cost to operate the company.

          18             COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  Okay.  Those, those

          19   include affiliated charges or the overhead that we

          20   discussed?

          21             THE WITNESS:  That's correct.

          22             COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  Okay.  A few -- and then

          23   on page 80, line 4 of your testimony, you make a pretty

          24   strong statement here on line 4 where "The analysis that

          25   I have conducted shows that the layers of management
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           1   associated with ownership by Aqua America have not

           2   produced any cost savings for customers and, in fact,

           3   have resulted in excessive costs."  Is that based on

           4   that peer review that you conducted?

           5             THE WITNESS:  That's based upon my peer

           6   analysis, yes.

           7             COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  Do you believe that,

           8   again, where you quoted where there's a, there's a

           9   burden of proof that has to be met by the utility, do

          10   you believe that the utility has met their burden to

          11   prove that all of their overhead, overhead or affiliated

          12   charges are reasonable?

          13             THE WITNESS:  No, I don't.

          14             COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  And are you aware of any

          15   previous Commission decision that removed or excluded

          16   costs or charges that were deemed unreasonable?

          17             THE WITNESS:  Oh, yes.

          18             COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  Now I would assume that

          19   some of their -- you would expect some overhead or

          20   affiliated charges to be reasonable.  Would your peer

          21   analysis, along with the other information provided by

          22   Aqua, would that add to -- or would that meet the burden

          23   of proof that is required by a utility and help justify

          24   costs?

          25             THE WITNESS:  Would my peer analysis help meet
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           1   the company's burden of proof?

           2             COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  Well, a similar peer

           3   analysis.  If the company performed a similar peer

           4   analysis that showed that their costs were in line with

           5   other similar utilities in similar areas with similar

           6   water and wastewater treatment, would that meet the

           7   burden of proof, in your opinion?

           8             THE WITNESS:  I believe if it was conducted

           9   correctly, yes, in the sense that you're, you're not

          10   looking at outside consultants and what their hourly

          11   rates are, but you're actually looking at the utility

          12   industry in Florida.

          13             COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  Okay.  And, again, can

          14   you summarize your recommended adjustments?  Because,

          15   again, you're not recommending we disallow all of their

          16   affiliated charges.  But based on your peer analysis and

          17   these 62%, I believe, higher affiliated charges, what,

          18   what -- could you summarize, please, your recommended

          19   adjustments to the --

          20             THE WITNESS:  Yes.  My recommended adjustment

          21   for the water operations is $653,387, and for the

          22   wastewater operations it's $322,922.

          23             COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  And in your opinion,

          24   those adjustments, the costs associated with those

          25   adjustments, with the information Aqua provided and your
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           1   peer analysis, would meet the burden of proof for

           2   reasonableness that this Commission needs to take into

           3   account?

           4             THE WITNESS:  Yes.

           5             COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  Okay.  Thank you.  I

           6   have no further questions.

           7             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Thank you.

           8             Commissioner Brown.

           9             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  Thank you.

          10             And thank you, Ms. Dismukes, for coming back

          11   to Florida.

          12             THE WITNESS:  No problem.

          13             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  Just a few questions.

          14   You testify that Aqua brought an unnecessary amount of

          15   representatives to the service hearings.  Were you in

          16   attendance at any of those service hearings?

          17             THE WITNESS:  No, I was not in attendance at

          18   the service hearings.  But I did review the transcripts

          19   of the hearings, which indicated the number of

          20   individuals -- the company introduced the people that

          21   were, you know, at the service hearings, as well as

          22   Ms. Christensen was at the service hearings.

          23             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  In your opinion, in your

          24   expert opinion, who would you recommend or deem as

          25   unnecessary for purposes of the service hearings?
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           1             THE WITNESS:  I don't have the individual

           2   names or the individuals that were there.  I'm just

           3   recommending that any individuals -- more than five

           4   individuals, those costs should be disallowed.

           5             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  Okay.  Moving on.  You

           6   also recommended that the Commission defer the rate case

           7   expenses approved in this proceeding until after the

           8   2008 rate case has been amortized, and then to amortize

           9   those expenses on a four-year basis.  That would then

          10   require customers to pay for the rate case expenses for

          11   this instant case through 2017; is that correct?

          12             THE WITNESS:  Yes.

          13             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  And you also recommended

          14   that the utility be allowed to incur carrying costs

          15   during that time period.  Do you have an estimate of

          16   what those carrying costs would be?

          17             THE WITNESS:  I have not calculated that.  But

          18   that basically puts the company in a position of no

          19   different than if it started amortizing the rate case

          20   expense as soon as the Commission's order was issued.

          21             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  Okay.  On page 93 you

          22   indicate in your testimony that Aqua frustrated the

          23   discovery process and caused unnecessary delays.  Can

          24   you please elaborate for us on that?

          25             THE WITNESS:  Yes.  I've worked in a lot of
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           1   rate cases, I've worked with many utilities, I've worked

           2   with the electric industry, the telephone industry, the

           3   gas industry, and the water industry.  And Aqua, in my

           4   opinion, has been particularly difficult in terms of

           5   providing discovery, either adequate responses, or in

           6   many instances objecting way too often to our discovery

           7   requests.  And it's a very frustrating process, it takes

           8   longer than needed.  It's just always been a difficult

           9   proposition with Aqua.  I don't know if it's

          10   management's decisions to do that or not, but -- I mean,

          11   we are working, I'm working on the Gulf Power case right

          12   now.  Gulf Power has been cooperative.  They've worked

          13   with us.  If we have a problem, we can, you know,

          14   discuss it with them, and it just runs a lot smoother.

          15             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  Thank you.  And you also

          16   indicated that there was a lack of paper production of

          17   documents, that the documents, the discovery was

          18   available at Holland & Knight law offices?

          19             THE WITNESS:  That's correct.

          20             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  Okay.  Was electronic

          21   production available in addition to the site visits; do

          22   you know?

          23             THE WITNESS:  We eventually -- I'm sorry.

          24   Yes, we eventually received the electronic versions of

          25   the documents, but we were required to go over there and
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           1   review the documents and then ask for the electronic

           2   versions of them, rather than -- what I am very used to

           3   in every jurisdiction that I work in is there is no

           4   paper production of documents anymore.  Everything is

           5   produced electronically.

           6             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  I'm aware of that too.  I

           7   just wanted to get some more insight into how that

           8   frustrated the discovery process, and wanted to make

           9   sure that OPC had an ample opportunity to receive the

          10   discovery responses and requests.

          11             THE WITNESS:  We did receive all the

          12   discovery, yes.

          13             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  Okay.  Thank you for your

          14   testimony.

          15             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Commissioner Brisé.

          16             COMMISSIONER BRISÉ:  Thank you, Mr. Chair.

          17             I have a few questions in a few different

          18   areas, and I guess I'll start with something that's

          19   fairly simple.

          20             In your testimony on page 12, starting at line

          21   28 'til page 13, ending at line 3, your testimony

          22   states, "A field service technician surreptitiously told

          23   a customer that 'Y'all get overcharged out there.  I

          24   don't know why, but I got a job to protect.'"

          25             In your analysis, did you actually have any
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           1   discussions with Aqua employees yourself?

           2             THE WITNESS:  No.  This was the customer

           3   testimony.

           4             COMMISSIONER BRISÉ:  Okay.  So, therefore, you

           5   don't have any feedback from actual employees yourself.

           6             THE WITNESS:  That's correct.

           7             COMMISSIONER BRISÉ:  So this, this was the

           8   perception of -- or this was from a customer at one of

           9   the meetings?

          10             THE WITNESS:  That's correct.

          11             COMMISSIONER BRISÉ:  Okay.  With respect to

          12   electric meters, what would you attribute the issues

          13   with the electric meters to?  What would you attribute

          14   that to?

          15             THE WITNESS:  The biggest issue that, that

          16   I've heard is that they don't, when they drive by, they

          17   don't necessarily get the reading.  And then they just

          18   continue on their way and then circle back around

          19   sometime much later in terms of trying to determine what

          20   the actual reading is for those meters.

          21             COMMISSIONER BRISÉ:  Okay.  What are, what are

          22   some best practices that you think would be applicable

          23   to, to apply to this particular situation with Aqua?

          24             THE WITNESS:  It's my understanding that -- at

          25   least I believe it from the testimony of maybe
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           1   Mr. Poucher indicated that normally if there's a

           2   misread, you don't wait to go back and check it.  You

           3   check it almost immediately.

           4             COMMISSIONER BRISÉ:  Okay.  What best

           5   practices are out there that you think you could

           6   recommend?  Maybe that clarifies it a little bit.

           7             THE WITNESS:  Well, I think it would be they

           8   need to devise a system.  And I can't tell them what

           9   that system is in terms of eliminating this problem and

          10   training their meter readers to correct that particular

          11   deficiency.  I mentioned, when I was talking with the

          12   Staff attorney, about the best practices in customer

          13   meter reading, and that would be one area to look at to

          14   determine what in the industry is the best practice.

          15             COMMISSIONER BRISÉ:  Okay.  In terms of water

          16   quality, your testimony includes a general statement

          17   about health concerns, and I wanted to know if there was

          18   any correlation between Aqua's water problems and actual

          19   health concerns.  So did you come across any information

          20   that attributed to some health concerns directly

          21   attributable to the consumption of Aqua water?

          22             THE WITNESS:  I didn't run across anything

          23   specific, other than the customer testimony saying that

          24   they were concerned about it.

          25             COMMISSIONER BRISÉ:  Okay.  In your analysis
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           1   did you find any improvement areas after -- with respect

           2   to water quality and health concerns after certain

           3   upgrades had been made?

           4             THE WITNESS:  I believe there has been some

           5   aesthetic improvements.  I know in connection with the

           6   Chuluota system, which is not part of this rate case,

           7   but from a water quality perspective that's an area

           8   where it's my understanding that customers are more

           9   satisfied with the, the quality, quality of the water.

          10             COMMISSIONER BRISÉ:  Okay.  Switching over to

          11   the affiliated transactions a little bit.  I think

          12   Commissioner Balbis hit on some of the issues there.

          13             But just for my satisfaction, do you think the

          14   allocation of Aqua resources are allocated

          15   satisfactorily in your opinion?

          16             THE WITNESS:  From a mechanical perspective,

          17   the actual allocation process?

          18             COMMISSIONER BRISÉ:  Right.

          19             THE WITNESS:  Yeah.  I did, I did not find any

          20   problems with the mechanical allocation of the dollars.

          21             COMMISSIONER BRISÉ:  Okay.  And the last

          22   question I have, you have two exhibits, one, schedule

          23   10, page 1, and the other one, schedule 28, page 177,

          24   which talks about compensation.  And I really want to

          25   know if you analyzed how much of the $3.5 million that
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           1   the CEO gets compensated was allocated to regulated

           2   entities like Aqua Utilities Florida.

           3             THE WITNESS:  Good question.  You're asking,

           4   of Mr. DeBenedictis' salary, how much is allocated to

           5   the, the utility as opposed to the nonregulated

           6   operations.

           7             COMMISSIONER BRISÉ:  Right.

           8             THE WITNESS:  They do have a lot of

           9   nonregulated operations.

          10             COMMISSIONER BRISÉ:  From Florida.

          11             THE WITNESS:  I don't have that.  I do have

          12   the amount that was allocated to Florida, if that would

          13   help.

          14             COMMISSIONER BRISÉ:  That's the first step,

          15   yes.

          16             THE WITNESS:  (Reviewing document.)  I know

          17   it's in here.

          18             COMMISSIONER BRISÉ:  It's okay.  We have time.

          19             THE WITNESS:  Okay.

          20             COMMISSIONER BRISÉ:  Right, Mr. Chairman?

          21             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Sure thing, Mr.

          22   Chairman-elect.

          23             (Pause.)

          24             COMMISSIONER BRISÉ:  Well, if you can't find

          25   the actual number, if you can give me a sense if, in
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           1   comparison to peers, are the, is it comparable?

           2             THE WITNESS:  Well, in terms of his overall --

           3   you'd really have to look at it in connection with his

           4   overall salary.

           5             COMMISSIONER BRISÉ:  Right.

           6             THE WITNESS:  My recollection, his, his total

           7   compensation, I think, is rounding about $3.5 million,

           8   which is -- well, I don't know.  It's probably less than

           9   your electric companies.  And I don't know how it

          10   compares to other water and wastewater companies.

          11             COMMISSIONER BRISÉ:  If you can't find it,

          12   that's fine.  I suppose that -- do you come back again?

          13   I think this is it for you.

          14             MS. CHRISTENSEN:  Commissioner, if I may make

          15   a suggestion, if we could take a short break, maybe she

          16   could find it within the short break.

          17             THE WITNESS:  I can file a late -- I can

          18   provide a late-filed.

          19             COMMISSIONER BRISÉ:  No.  I was just trying to

          20   get a sense of how much of those dollars really affect

          21   or benefit Florida customers.

          22             THE WITNESS:  It's under a hundred thousand

          23   dollars.  I can tell you that.  I know that for sure.

          24             COMMISSIONER BRISÉ:  Okay.  And with that, I

          25   think that that satisfies what I was looking for.  Thank
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           1   you very much.

           2             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Ms. Dismukes, I have a

           3   question or two.  Ms. Bennett asked you a few questions

           4   about customer service.  And I don't know if you were

           5   here when Ms. Chambers was on the stand, and I asked her

           6   a couple of questions which were a little confusing to

           7   me.  As we traveled the state, and there is definitely

           8   areas where there's a lot of complaints about customer

           9   service, and there's areas where for the most part no

          10   one even mentions customer service.  So I figured since

          11   they're not mentioning it, then they're not

          12   necessarily -- they're not complaining about it.  And I

          13   just assumed that one area of the state had one set of

          14   customer service and the other area of the state had

          15   another, and Ms. Chambers had told us that everybody

          16   goes to the same area, to the same bank of phones.

          17             My question to you, and you may not have an

          18   answer for this, do you have an idea how or why that

          19   happens?

          20             THE WITNESS:  In terms of you're not hearing

          21   the same customer complaint in every service territory?

          22   Well, there's perhaps a couple of explanations.  One is

          23   that the, at least the quality of the water is

          24   different, which generates a lot of concerns by the

          25   customers.
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           1             The other is that the -- given where the

           2   customer hearings are held, in, I think in instances

           3   there are, they're to cover a fairly wide area in terms

           4   of the utility's service territory, and so what you're

           5   seeing is customers coming forth when they're in close

           6   proximity to where the service hearing is.

           7             And then third, many of the customer service

           8   hearings were conducted during when many of the

           9   transient customers, or the customers that come down

          10   just for the winter, were not there.

          11             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Do you know if there is any

          12   analysis, looking at the areas that had the higher

          13   customer complaints, if we looked at what maintenance

          14   costs would be in those areas?  I mean, are they, are

          15   they working harder?  Are they working less?  Do we

          16   know?

          17             THE WITNESS:  I don't know the answer to that.

          18             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.  One last question.

          19   Your, your company -- as far as you know, have you or

          20   somebody from your company called customer service just,

          21   I guess, out of curiosity to see what they go through,

          22   what happens when you call that number?

          23             THE WITNESS:  No, I have not.

          24             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.

          25             Commissioner Balbis.
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           1             COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  Thank you.  And I have

           2   two quick follow-up questions just to clarify your

           3   answers to the other Commissioners.

           4             You responded to Commissioner Brisé concerning

           5   the mechanical allocation, and I just want to clarify.

           6   That would be, that would be like the software that's

           7   used, or the way, the time accounting system, et cetera,

           8   not the charges themselves that you're okay with?

           9             THE WITNESS:  Correct.  Yes.  It's basically

          10   the application of the -- they use a customer allocation

          11   factor.  So it's the application of the percent is

          12   accurately applied to the expense to get it to the

          13   Florida level.  I have no problems with the application,

          14   the mechanical applications.  What I -- my concerns are

          15   with the dollars that were spent.

          16             COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  Okay.  And then back to

          17   Chairman Graham's line of questioning concerning

          18   customer complaints, because that's something that I,

          19   that I wondered about as well.

          20             In your opinion, could it be the case where

          21   certain areas make more complaints and the customer

          22   service representatives are reacting to the volume of

          23   calls and maybe changing their customer service?  Is

          24   that something in your experience may happen, or you

          25   still don't know why it could happen?
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           1             THE WITNESS:  I can't answer that.

           2             COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  Okay.  Thank you.  I

           3   have nothing further.

           4             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Ms. Christensen, redirect?

           5             MS. CHRISTENSEN:  Yes.  And we have a few

           6   redirect exhibits that we would like to use.  So if you

           7   can give us a moment to pass those out, it'll make this

           8   go a lot quicker.

           9             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Sure.

          10             (Pause.)

          11             Ms. Christensen, so I understand, there's just

          12   two exhibits?

          13             MS. CHRISTENSEN:  Correct.  And if we can go,

          14   if you want to go ahead and identify those.

          15             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Which would you like to be

          16   330 and which would you like to be 331?

          17             MS. CHRISTENSEN:  330 can be the 2011 customer

          18   service hearings.

          19             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.

          20             MS. CHRISTENSEN:  And 331 can be the peer

          21   group analysis.

          22             (Exhibits 330 and 331 marked for

          23   identification.)

          24             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Whenever you're ready,

          25   ma'am.
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           1             MS. CHRISTENSEN:  Okay.

           2                         EXAMINATION

           3   BY MS. CHRISTENSEN:

           4        Q    Ms. Dismukes, do you recall a conversation

           5   with Mr. May regarding your consulting company, about

           6   the practices at your consulting company?

           7        A    Yes.

           8        Q    Is the Arcadian Group a regulated company?

           9        A    No.

          10        Q    Is Arcadian a, what we would call a

          11   market-based company that has to compete for customers?

          12        A    Yes.

          13        Q    Okay.  And I think you and Mr. May also had a

          14   discussion a little about, I'm not sure if it was about

          15   confiscatory rates or about capital investment, but are

          16   expenses the same as capital investments?

          17        A    No.

          18        Q    And can you explain why expenses are

          19   different?

          20        A    Well, expenses are dollars that are expended

          21   every year.  Capital items are your plant, your

          22   investment, items that may basically go into the ground.

          23        Q    Okay.  And you had -- I think there was

          24   discussion about Mr. Szczygiel's market-based study, and

          25   I think you were asked whether or not you agree with
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           1   that.  Do you -- can you explain whether or not you

           2   disagree with his market-based study, and explain why?

           3        A    I do not agree with his market-based study,

           4   and I spend several pages of testimony on that.  But it

           5   primarily focuses around the fact that it's, it's not a

           6   peer comparison, it doesn't examine situations that are

           7   analogous to this situation.  He is comparing employees

           8   of Aqua to CPA firms.

           9             I looked at the list of Aqua employees at the

          10   ASI level and the service company level, and I believe

          11   there was only one CPA on the entire, entire list.  And

          12   so it's not appropriate, for example, to compare the

          13   hourly rate of a CPA firm to, you know, the equivalent

          14   hourly rate of what Aqua, you know, what Aqua's

          15   equivalent accounting functions hourly rate is.

          16             Same with legal.  Many times, not always, you

          17   will have legal firms that are general legal firms, but

          18   you also have legal firms that specialize.  Those hourly

          19   rates are typically higher than, you know, what you

          20   would expect to get at the, you know, at the utility

          21   level.

          22             Likewise, management companies, they also

          23   specialize in certain areas.  And it's that

          24   specialization and that honing in which allows them to

          25   charge that higher hourly rate.  They can accomplish
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           1   what needs to be accomplished more quickly.

           2             And so I don't believe his comparison is

           3   appropriate.

           4        Q    Okay.  Do you recall conversations with

           5   Mr. May regarding the customer meetings and it not being

           6   sworn testimony, and you said that you also had reviewed

           7   the service hearings for similar type quotes?  Do you

           8   recall that conversation?

           9        A    Yes.

          10        Q    Okay.  And I have provided you with Exhibit

          11   330.  Is this a summary of the quotes with the

          12   transcript cites that you were referring to?

          13        A    Yes.  Subsequent to the filing of my

          14   testimony, we prepared this analysis, basically going

          15   through the transcripts of the customer service hearings

          16   and identifying customer concerns.

          17        Q    And in your review of the customer service

          18   hearings, are the complaints that the customers had at

          19   the service hearings similar to those complaints that

          20   they raised at the customer meetings the year previous?

          21        A    Yes.

          22        Q    Okay.

          23             MR. MAY:  Mr. Chairman?  Excuse me.  We have

          24   no issues with respect to the sworn testimony at the

          25   customer service hearings.  I am curious as to
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           1   whether -- are you amending your prefiled direct

           2   testimony now?

           3             MS. CHRISTENSEN:  No.  This is an exhibit to

           4   the testimony.  And Mr. May had raised the question --

           5   she had summarized the customer comments from the

           6   customer meetings, and he asserted that it was not sworn

           7   testimony.  She said she had also conducted a similar

           8   analysis subsequent to that of the service hearings, and

           9   this is a summary of the customer comments with, of the

          10   similar in nature that was provided in the testimony.

          11             So it's, it's an exhibit.  It's not, we're not

          12   amending or changing our original testimony, and it's,

          13   and it's being offered as an exhibit.

          14             MR. MAY:  I guess, you know, again, there is

          15   no doubt that the customer service hearing testimony,

          16   the transcripts in that testimony is part of the record.

          17   What I'm concerned about is she appears to be amending

          18   her prefiled direct testimony through the redirect

          19   process.  And if that's the case, I'd like an

          20   opportunity to assimilate this information and consider

          21   it as to whether I need to pursue further

          22   cross-examination of this witness.

          23             MS. CHRISTENSEN:  I don't believe it's a

          24   supplemental.  I think it's just an exhibit in response

          25   to a question that was asked by Mr. May that's
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           1   appropriately addressed on redirect.

           2             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  I think that these questions

           3   are appropriate for the redirect, as Ms. Christensen

           4   just said.  During your questioning, you had asked

           5   specifically because of the customers -- because of what

           6   she was putting forth in her direct testimony wasn't

           7   sworn customers, and she's just proving or showing that

           8   similar things are being said, sworn customers and not

           9   sworn customers.

          10             If you want to get any deeper than that, then

          11   we may need to let Mr. May get back to redirect.

          12             MS. CHRISTENSEN:  And that's what that's being

          13   proffered for, and obviously we have the customer

          14   transcripts.  So if there's any typographical errors,

          15   that can -- obviously the transcripts from the service

          16   hearings would be the appropriate and the official

          17   transcripts.

          18   BY MS. CHRISTENSEN:

          19        Q    Let me -- you were also asked by Mr. May

          20   regarding, and Commissioner Balbis, whether or not there

          21   were peer group analysis, whether or not the Commission

          22   had ever conducted such peer group analysis and relied

          23   on that.  Do you recall that line of questioning?

          24        A    Yes, from Mr. May.

          25        Q    And I'm showing you Exhibit 331, entitled
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           1   "Commission Orders for Peer Analysis."

           2             Did you contact a search for Commission orders

           3   where peer group analyses were previously utilized by

           4   the Commission?

           5        A    Yes.  After the conclusion of the hearing, I

           6   went and reviewed, searched basically the Commission's

           7   orders, and identified several where the Commission has

           8   done peer analysis, peer analyses in the past.

           9        Q    And are these the portions of the relevant

          10   orders that discuss that peer group analysis?

          11        A    Yes.

          12        Q    Okay.  I think you were asked questions about

          13   your late-filed exhibit regarding the Connecticut call

          14   center, electric utility call center statistics.

          15             I just want to clarify, are you recommending

          16   that the Commission use the Connecticut call center

          17   metrics as a benchmark to measure Aqua's call center

          18   performance?

          19        A    No.

          20        Q    Okay.  And I think you were also asked by

          21   Ms. Bennett whether, regarding whether or not a

          22   utility's high rates are solely due to capital

          23   investment, the type of capital investment and the small

          24   number of customer groups, so I wanted to follow up on

          25   that line of questioning.
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           1             Do you believe that Aqua's high rates are

           2   solely due to the small customer base and the large

           3   capital investment?

           4        A    No, I do not.

           5        Q    Okay.  Can you explain what you think the

           6   driver for the high rates are for Aqua?

           7        A    In connection with my examination of the

           8   company's MFRs and its rate case, rate case data here, I

           9   focused on, as you know, primarily the administrative

          10   and general expenses.

          11             The -- Aqua has, Aqua, Aqua Services, Aqua

          12   America have many, many people performing administrative

          13   tasks.  At the Aqua Florida level there are 24 people

          14   that perform administrative tasks.  At the AAI level,

          15   America -- Aqua America, Incorporated, there are ten

          16   people.  Those are primarily your, your presidents and

          17   vice presidents.  At the Aqua Services level there are

          18   109 people performing administrative tasks.  And then at

          19   the ACO, which is the customer service organization,

          20   there are another 140 people that are performing

          21   administrative tasks.  And these costs are allocated

          22   down to AUF.  There are layers and layers of management

          23   that are causing, in my opinion, excessive

          24   administrative and general expenses to be allocated down

          25   to Florida.
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           1        Q    And, Ms. Dismukes, do you know how large Aqua

           2   Florida's customer base is?

           3        A    Right around 18,000 customers.

           4        Q    Is that for water and wastewater as well?

           5        A    Yes.

           6        Q    Okay.  And one last question.  Do you believe

           7   there's any reason -- do you have any reason to believe

           8   that the company could not decrease its expenses on a

           9   going-forward basis?

          10        A    No.

          11             MS. CHRISTENSEN:  I think that's all the

          12   redirect I have.  Thank you.

          13             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Ms. Christensen, do you have

          14   any exhibits to put into the record?

          15             MS. CHRISTENSEN:  Yes, I do.  I have the

          16   direct exhibits from Ms. Dismukes' testimony, and that

          17   would be -- let me just flip to it.  I believe it starts

          18   at 102 through 131.

          19             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  We will enter Exhibits 102

          20   through 131.

          21             (Exhibits 102 through 131 admitted into the

          22   record.)

          23             MS. CHRISTENSEN:  And then also I would ask to

          24   move in Exhibits 330 and 331.

          25             MS. BENNETT:  Also 326 was her errata sheet.
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           1             MS. CHRISTENSEN:  Oh, I'm sorry.  And 326 then

           2   as well.

           3             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  326, 330, 331, and 102

           4   through 131.

           5             (Exhibits 326, 330, and 331 admitted into the

           6   record.)

           7             Mr. May.

           8             MR. MAY:  Mr. Chairman, we would move

           9   Exhibits 327 and 328.

          10             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Ms. Bennett.

          11             MS. BENNETT:  And we would move 329.

          12             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  We will move 327, 328, and

          13   329 also into the record.

          14             (Exhibits 327, 328, and 329 admitted into the

          15   record.)

          16             Ms. Dismukes, I want to thank you for coming

          17   back.  I apologize that we weren't able to get this done

          18   last week, but we're glad to see you again this week.

          19             THE WITNESS:  Thanks.  I like Tallahassee.  I

          20   lived here for 12 years, so it's nice to come back.

          21             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Thank you for your

          22   testimony, ma'am.

          23             Now it appears to me the next one is going to

          24   be Shawn Harpin?

          25             MR. CURTIN:  Yes, Chairman.
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           1             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  All right.  We're going to

           2   take about a five -- let's take about a ten-minute

           3   break.  If you have any exhibits for this witness --

           4             MR. CURTIN:  Only his prefiled.

           5             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.  Thanks.  All right.

           6   Let's take a ten-minute break.  Come back at 11:10.

           7             (Recess taken.)

           8             YES, have your witnesses been sworn?

           9             MR. CURTIN:  Ms. Kurz has not.  Mr. Harpin was

          10   sworn last week.

          11             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.  Mr. Harpin is up

          12   first?

          13             MR. CURTIN:  Yes.  Call Mr. Shawn Harpin.

          14             May I begin, Mr. Chairman?

          15             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Sure.

          16                         SHAWN HARPIN

          17   was called as a witness on behalf of YES Communities

          18   and, having been duly sworn, testified as follows:

          19                         EXAMINATION

          20   BY MR. CURTIN:

          21        Q    Mr. Harpin, can you please state your full

          22   name for the record.

          23        A    Full name is Shawn Harpin.

          24        Q    And who are you employed by?

          25        A    YES Communities.
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           1        Q    And what's your position with YES Communities?

           2        A    Senior Regional Manager for the Florida

           3   Division.

           4        Q    And did you file eight pages of prefiled

           5   testimony in this case?

           6        A    Yes, I did.

           7        Q    Do you have any revisions or clarifications to

           8   your prefiled testimony?

           9        A    I do.

          10        Q    What are they?

          11        A    Page 6, line 3, the information that was given

          12   to me was by several customers in regards to the 25% of

          13   outstanding payments.  It's come to our realization

          14   that, you know, this was an issue that, you know, Aqua

          15   did ask for, but we found that there's other ways of

          16   payment arrangements that Aqua has made.

          17        Q    Other than those revisions, if I asked you the

          18   same questions, would you give the same answers?

          19        A    Yes.

          20        Q    And did you also --

          21             MR. CURTIN:  I would like to at this time

          22   insert Mr. Harpin's prefiled testimony into the record

          23   with the revisions he just talked about.

          24             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  We'll insert Mr. Harpin's

          25   testimony into the record as though read.
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           1   BY MR. CURTIN:

           2        Q    And you are sponsoring four exhibits.  I think

           3   that's SH-1 through SH-4.

           4        A    That's correct.

           5        Q    Which are Composite Exhibits 136 through 139

           6   for the record.  Do you have any revisions to those

           7   exhibits?

           8        A    I do not.

           9             MR. CURTIN:  I would tender Mr. Harpin for

          10   cross-examination.

          11             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.

          12             MR. MAY:  Mr. Chairman, before I begin my

          13   cross, which hopefully is going to be very short, could

          14   I get -- I didn't hear the revisions to the testimony.

          15   BY MR. CURTIN:

          16        Q    Mr. Harpin, can you just explain your

          17   revisions again?

          18        A    Yeah, absolutely.  The revisions is in regards

          19   to page 6, line item 3, in regards to the 25%

          20   outstanding.  That was information that was given to me

          21   by several customers.  I realized that Aqua Utilities

          22   has a better -- or I shouldn't say better, but another

          23   payment plan that has been provided to customers

          24   outside.

          25             MS. CHRISTENSEN:  Commissioner, I have a few
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           1   questions for this witness, and I didn't know if you

           2   wanted to see if I wanted to go before Mr. May or after

           3   Mr. May.  I don't --

           4             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Well, the question I had is

           5   are these questions contrary to the position of YES?

           6             MS. CHRISTENSEN:  I don't know.  I don't know

           7   until he answers.  I mean, I expect my questions are,

           8   are similar, in a similar posture to the way Staff has

           9   been in a posture in this case, which is I am more in a

          10   neutral posture to YES.  I don't -- I'm not supporting

          11   their case, I'm not defending their case, but I do have

          12   a few questions since this witness is an expert in real

          13   estate and one of the issues here is how the quality of

          14   service affects real estate.  So I have a few questions

          15   regarding that of this witness.

          16             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  It sounds to me like your

          17   questions would be as friendly cross, and we said that

          18   there was not going to be any friendly cross.

          19             MS. CHRISTENSEN:  Well, I wouldn't categorize

          20   it as friendly.  I would assume that it's more akin to

          21   what Staff would ask, which is just to clarify the

          22   record.  You know, obviously we have to abide whatever

          23   the Chairman decides, but it's not a particularly long

          24   line of questioning.

          25             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  We'll go down this path, if
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           1   you're clarifying things.  I'm all about making sure

           2   that things are on the record clear.

           3             MS. CHRISTENSEN:  Would you like me to go

           4   first then?

           5             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Sure.

           6             MS. CHRISTENSEN:  Okay.

           7                         EXAMINATION

           8   BY MS. CHRISTENSEN:

           9        Q    Mr. Harpin, let me direct you to page 2 of

          10   your testimony.

          11             Now, Mr. Harpin, if I'm understanding your

          12   testimony correctly, you are responsible for all of the

          13   communities, YES Communities located in Florida; is that

          14   correct?

          15        A    That is correct.

          16        Q    And as part of that responsibility, you lease,

          17   sell, and perform financing for those properties; is

          18   that correct?

          19        A    That is correct.

          20        Q    Okay.  And I just have a few questions to ask

          21   regarding the types of things that affect real estate

          22   values.

          23             Would you agree that the quality of the

          24   utility service, including the water service, is one of

          25   the things that affects the value or the, the real
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           1   estate value of a property?

           2        A    I do believe that, yes.

           3        Q    Okay.  And would you agree that if the water

           4   quality is perceived as poor, that would have a negative

           5   impact upon the value of the home in a particular

           6   neighborhood?

           7        A    I would agree with that.

           8        Q    And would you agree that if the rates are too

           9   high, that that can either impact the ability to sell a

          10   person -- for a person to sell a home or to rent a home?

          11             MR. MAY:  I object.  If she's going to

          12   cross-examine the witness, she's using -- if this is not

          13   friendly cross, if this is truly cross-examination in

          14   the true sense, I think that line of questioning is

          15   correct.  If she's asking her -- she's leading the

          16   witness now.

          17             MS. CHRISTENSEN:  Well, this was my last

          18   question, but I can, I can end my questioning there.

          19             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.  I was going to say,

          20   because we just want to make sure we're clarifying

          21   things that he had on the record, making sure that they

          22   were clear.

          23             MS. CHRISTENSEN:  And I'm finished, and that's

          24   fine.

          25             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.
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           1             Any other Intervenors?

           2             Mr. May.

           3                         EXAMINATION

           4   BY MR. MAY:

           5        Q    Thank you, Mr. Harpin, for coming in this

           6   morning.

           7        A    Thanks for having me.

           8        Q    It's been a long, long, long haul, and I

           9   appreciate you, you staying for the duration.

          10             YES is a private for-profit company; correct?

          11        A    That is correct.

          12        Q    Okay.  When did YES acquire Arredondo Farms?

          13        A    January 17th, 2008.

          14        Q    Did you assist in the due diligence of that

          15   acquisition?

          16        A    I did not.

          17        Q    Do you know what due diligence is?

          18        A    I do.

          19        Q    Okay.  How would you describe due diligence,

          20   in the context of an acquisition of a real estate

          21   development?

          22        A    You basically go in and value assess the asset

          23   and determine on what, you know, the value of that

          24   property might be worth.

          25        Q    In performing your due diligence, did you ever
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           1   inquire as to Aqua as to the amount of turnover that was

           2   occurring at this real estate development prior to your

           3   acquisition?

           4             MR. CURTIN:  The only objection I have is that

           5   the witness has testified already he was not involved in

           6   the due diligence at all, and now he's asking about what

           7   due diligence it was.  The witness already testified he

           8   has no knowledge of that.

           9             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  He said he wasn't involved.

          10   I didn't hear you say you had no knowledge of it.

          11             THE WITNESS:  I have, I have no knowledge.

          12   BY MR. MAY:

          13        Q    So you don't know if the company performed any

          14   due diligence with respect to --

          15        A    I'm not aware.

          16        Q    And you wouldn't know whether there was a high

          17   turnover of customers -- excuse me -- of residents in

          18   Arredondo Farms prior to YES's acquisition; correct?

          19        A    I would not be aware of any.

          20        Q    Okay.  Would it surprise you that there is

          21   record evidence that would show that there was a high

          22   turn -- there's been a high turnover at Arredondo Farms

          23   far before YES Communities acquired the development?

          24        A    I mean, I would, you know, like to see that

          25   information to see if it's relative to the amount of
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           1   turnovers that we have, you know, compared to since the

           2   acquisition of the properties.

           3        Q    Will you be around for Ms. Chambers' testimony

           4   later today?

           5        A    I may be.

           6        Q    Okay.  Does YES Communities utilize the

           7   Internet to market its mobile home parks to potential

           8   buyers and renters?

           9        A    It does.

          10        Q    Okay.  In the cross-examination questions by

          11   Ms. Christensen, she asked you whether the water

          12   quality -- whether if the water quality was perceived to

          13   be poor, would that have an impact on the value of your

          14   real estate holdings.  Do you recall that question?

          15        A    I do recall.

          16        Q    Okay.  In your experience in real estate, it

          17   would be reasonable to expect potential buyers and

          18   renters to use the Internet as a tool to shop for mobile

          19   homes to rent or buy; correct?

          20        A    I would, I would agree with that.

          21             MR. MAY:  Okay.  Mr. Chairman, with

          22   permission, I'd like to present the witness with an

          23   exhibit.

          24             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Sure.

          25             MR. MAY:  I'll give you a minute to get the
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           1   exhibit.

           2             (Pause.)

           3             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Mr. May, we'll give you

           4   Exhibit Number 332.

           5             MR. MAY:  332 is my number as well, Mr. Chair.

           6             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Do you have a description

           7   for this?

           8             MR. MAY:  It's the Homefacts website

           9   concerning Arredondo Farms.

          10             (Exhibit 332 marked for identification.)

          11   BY MR. MAY:

          12        Q    Mr. Harpin, have you had time to review the

          13   exhibit?

          14        A    Briefly.

          15        Q    As an expert in real estate values, you're

          16   aware that there are services that review and provide

          17   due diligence to potential buyers and renters regarding

          18   a particular community of interest; correct?

          19        A    Correct.

          20        Q    Okay.  Have you ever used the service

          21   Homefacts?

          22        A    I'm sorry?

          23        Q    Have you ever used the service Homefacts,

          24   which provides this type of due diligence to potential

          25   buyers and renters?
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           1        A    I have not used Homefacts, no.

           2        Q    Okay.  You're aware of the service, aren't

           3   you?

           4        A    I've heard of it.

           5        Q    And the service would provide a potential

           6   buyer or renter information concerning a community that

           7   would involve such things as any environmental issues,

           8   any criminal offenders or sex offenders, school zones,

           9   water quality, et cetera; correct?

          10        A    I would assume so.

          11        Q    What was the Homefacts rating with respect to

          12   Arredondo Farms' water quality?

          13        A    Well, on the document that you provided me it

          14   was 9.8, but I'm not necessarily sure who provided that

          15   information.

          16        Q    If a potential buyer or renter reviewed this

          17   information, do you believe that a potential buyer or

          18   renter would react favorably or unfavorably to this type

          19   of information about Arredondo Farms?

          20        A    I couldn't comment on someone who wants to

          21   look at this piece of paper and identify whether that

          22   person believes that this is something that they would

          23   feel worth a value.

          24             MR. MAY:  I have no further questions,

          25   Mr. Chairman.
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           1             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.

           2             Staff?

           3             MR. JAEGER:  Staff has no questions.

           4             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Commissioners?

           5             Okay.  Redirect.

           6             MR. CURTIN:  Quickly, Chairman.

           7                         EXAMINATION

           8   BY MR. CURTIN:

           9        Q    I know you weren't involved in the due

          10   diligence and have no knowledge of the due diligence

          11   conducted on the purchase of Arredondo Farms, but to

          12   your knowledge, was this a single purchase or was it a

          13   multiple package purchase of parks around the country?

          14        A    It was a multiple acquisition of 67 properties

          15   in 12 states across the country.

          16        Q    So it wasn't just a single purchase of

          17   Arredondo Farms?

          18        A    No, it was not.

          19        Q    And in your experience, and I know you didn't

          20   do anything with the due diligence of this single park,

          21   but would the due diligence of a package of 67, 68 parks

          22   from nationwide be a different type of due diligence

          23   than you would do --

          24             MR. MAY:  I'm sorry.  I object to that.  Your

          25   witness specifically said he had nothing to do with the
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           1   due diligence that went into this acquisition and he had

           2   no knowledge of it.

           3             MR. CURTIN:  This -- I'm sorry.  This specific

           4   due diligence -- he did say that -- Mr. May asked him

           5   questions about what would you do for due diligence, and

           6   he answered those questions and I did not object to

           7   that.  My specific question was not the due diligence on

           8   this park, but in his experience would due diligence on

           9   a package purchase of 67, 68 parks be different than a

          10   due diligence of a single asset.

          11             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  I'll allow the question.

          12             THE WITNESS:  I, I believe the due diligence

          13   would be different for, you know, a single property

          14   versus a multiple property.  Sure.

          15   BY MR. CURTIN:

          16        Q    Now after you purchased the park -- it was in

          17   2008 it was purchased?

          18        A    That is correct.

          19        Q    There was a rate, a large rate increase in

          20   2009; correct?

          21        A    That is correct.

          22        Q    In your opinion, did that large rate increase

          23   affect the value of the park and the affordability of

          24   the residents at that park to afford the water service?

          25             MR. MAY:  I object.  That's going beyond the
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           1   scope of cross-examination.

           2             MR. CURTIN:  Once again, they talked about,

           3   Mr. Chairman, about the fact that the due diligence of

           4   this park and the fact that the purchase of the park was

           5   made in 2008, which Mr. May has asked about, and I want

           6   to say what has changed since 2008 which may affect the

           7   value of this park and affect his testimony?  That was a

           8   question specifically asked when they purchased this

           9   park.  So I just want to put it on the record, when they

          10   purchased the park there was a rate increase shortly

          11   thereafter and what effect that may have on the park.

          12             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  I'll allow it.

          13   BY MR. CURTIN:

          14        Q    In your opinion, was that rate increase, which

          15   was in 2009, approximately a year after you purchased

          16   the park, did that affect the values of the park and the

          17   ability of the residents to afford water and wastewater

          18   services at that park?

          19        A    Yes, it did.

          20        Q    I want to turn to that Homefacts exhibit from

          21   the Internet.  Turn to the last page there.  And it

          22   talks about chemicals tested and found, three.  But that

          23   wasn't expanded to see what chemicals were found;

          24   correct?

          25        A    Correct.
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           1        Q    And it says, "Chemicals tested and not found,

           2   62," but that was not expanded; correct?

           3        A    Correct.

           4        Q    And it said, "Chemicals not tested, 157," or

           5   it says, "No tests were run for these chemicals."  That

           6   wasn't expanded, so you don't know what was tested for

           7   in this park and what wasn't tested?

           8        A    That is correct.

           9        Q    And do you have any knowledge of how

          10   Homefacts.com rates their 9.8 out of 10?

          11        A    I don't.

          12             MR. CURTIN:  No further questions.

          13             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  I have a question.  How do

          14   you know that the chemical tested was not expanded past

          15   three?  Or how do you know the last three questions that

          16   you were just asked, how do you know they didn't go any

          17   further than what you see right here on the sheet?

          18             THE WITNESS:  Well, I can only go based off

          19   the information that's provided in front of me.  I have

          20   no detailed analysis of where this information really

          21   came from.

          22             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  So the answer to that

          23   question is just based on what's in front of you?

          24             THE WITNESS:  Correct.

          25             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.  So now back to the
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           1   question that Mr. May had asked you, based on what's in

           2   front of you, with this thing being 9.8 out of 10, would

           3   that have an adverse effect or a favorable effect of

           4   somebody looking to move into that area?

           5             THE WITNESS:  Well, I think it depends on, you

           6   know, whether they had that information in front of

           7   them.  And I think, yes, if they had that information in

           8   front of them, it would probably be, it would be

           9   favorable.

          10             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.  Thank you.

          11             MR. CURTIN:  No questions.

          12             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.  All right.

          13             Commissioner Brown.

          14             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  Thank you.  Mr. Chairman,

          15   I -- this exhibit says page 3 of 7.  I'm interested in

          16   seeing the rest of the pages of the exhibit, if

          17   possible.

          18             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Well, this exhibit is just

          19   these three pages.  If you want for him to include the

          20   entire report --

          21             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  I'm curious if there's

          22   anything relevant.  At the top it says, "Page 3 of 7,"

          23   and I'm curious what the remaining pages are.

          24             MR. MAY:  In the interest of brevity -- we'll

          25   be glad to supply all the chemicals and break this down
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           1   exactly what was done and what wasn't done with respect

           2   to this exhibit just for full disclosure, because I

           3   think it will show that there are, you know, there's no

           4   exceedances.  Well, I'm not going to testify, but the

           5   exhibit will speak for itself.

           6             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  I just want a complete

           7   exhibit.

           8             MR. MAY:  Okay.  We'd love that opportunity,

           9   to provide you that.

          10             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Is there any objection to

          11   expanding Exhibit 332 to not just be these three pages

          12   but the entire 7 out of 7?

          13             MR. CURTIN:  Well, I would have an objection

          14   to the whole exhibit as hearsay.  We don't have anybody

          15   from Homefacts to testify of when these tests were done.

          16   The tests, if you look at it, are only from, it appears

          17   to be only from 2004 to 2008.  They don't have any test

          18   2009, '10, '11.

          19             So the whole ability of this exhibit and the

          20   ability for me cross-examine someone on this exhibit is

          21   not here.  I think the way the exhibit is, is put in, it

          22   was put in this way.  They could have brought these

          23   extra pages.  If you look on the first page, it's 1 of

          24   8, the second page is 3 of 8, the third page is 3 of 7.

          25   So I don't know if these are multiple pages from the
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           1   same document or from different web pages.

           2             If they wanted to put an exhibit in, they

           3   should have put it in in the beginning.  And I don't

           4   think this exhibit has any evidentiary value whatsoever,

           5   and I would object to it totally coming in.  I would

           6   object to expanding it at all, also.

           7             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Well, I don't have a problem

           8   with him just bringing the pages that he wanted to

           9   question into, into this hearing.  I have a Commissioner

          10   that wants to see the entire piece of the website and

          11   not just one or two pages, and I don't have a problem

          12   with that.  So I guess I'll overrule your objection.

          13             Is there any other objection to bringing the

          14   entire piece?

          15             Staff?

          16             MR. JAEGER:  We don't have any objections.

          17   One thing I do note, it was like 1 of 8 and 3 of 8 and

          18   then 3 of 7.  Was there -- did you want the eight pages

          19   also or just the last seven?  It seems like there's --

          20   I'm not sure what's going on.

          21             MR. CURTIN:  And I don't know if the 1 of 8

          22   and 3 of 8 are from the same set of pages.  It could be

          23   from two separate sets of pages.

          24             And the only other thing I would ask this

          25   Commission is -- I'm going to go look at this web page
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           1   tonight, and I would like to reserve to bring in

           2   anything I may want to bring in tomorrow on this and add

           3   it to this exhibit from this web page.  I don't know if

           4   there's going to be anything.  But if things are going

           5   to be added, I would like to look at the web page and

           6   also see if I might have --

           7             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  I don't have a problem with

           8   giving you the opportunity to clarify what this web page

           9   says or does not say, or what it leaves in and does not

          10   leave out.  And I'll allow Mr. May to also address

          11   whatever you bring tomorrow.  I think that's fair.

          12             Commissioner Brown, I think that you're

          13   looking for specifically this website dealing with

          14   Arredondo Farms.

          15             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  That's correct.  And I

          16   want to make sure that we have a complete exhibit with

          17   reference to Arredondo Farms.  So if it's eight pages,

          18   then it's eight pages in its entirety, or seven.

          19             MR. MAY:  Just so, just so everyone is clear,

          20   this is, this, as Mr. Harpin has testified, this is a,

          21   this is a service that is on the Internet for potential

          22   buyers and renters.  There are a number of different

          23   categories of issues.  You can go into hazardous

          24   substances, you can go into local school zones.  I was

          25   just providing the information with respect to water
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           1   quality for purposes of this hearing.

           2             So that's what I would propose to do is to

           3   bring the entire spectrum of issues with respect to

           4   water quality that this service has provided on the

           5   website.

           6             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  And, Mr. Chairman, I

           7   think that's relevant and that's what we're considering

           8   at this point, so thank you.

           9             MR. CURTIN:  And just for the record, when I

          10   say I'm going to go back and look at this web page and

          11   bring what I may or may not want to bring in, that is

          12   notwithstanding -- I understand, Mr. Chairman, it's your

          13   ruling that you're going to allow it in.

          14             My objection totally to any of this coming in

          15   and supplemental, and Mr. May supplementing it at all, I

          16   maintain that objection.  But if you're going to

          17   overrule that objection, I would also like to have the

          18   opportunity.  But for the record I want to make sure

          19   that for any appellate purposes that I'm maintaining

          20   that objection to anything of this web page coming in.

          21             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Well, if you were to bring

          22   something tomorrow that makes me want to revisit that

          23   objection, that opportunity is still here.

          24             MR. CURTIN:  And I will -- I just want to make

          25   sure that objection is still there.
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           1             MR. MAY:  But I just, again, I want to make it

           2   clear, the basis for me offering this exhibit was based

           3   precisely on Ms. Christensen's cross-examination.  She

           4   asked would water quality -- "Would customers'

           5   perception of water quality affect the value of the real

           6   estate?"  The only reason I offered this into evidence

           7   was because Ms. Christensen --

           8             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  No.  No.  I understand the

           9   reason why you asked that question.  And, once again,

          10   that's the reason why when it was all said and done I

          11   went back and asked him the same question, because I

          12   didn't think that it was answered.

          13             Ms. Helton.

          14             MS. HELTON:  Mr. Chairman, I was just going to

          15   add -- first, I agree with your ruling.  But I was going

          16   to add another layer to it, and that is that counsel's,

          17   to YES's, objection should have been made

          18   contemporaneously with the questions concerning the

          19   exhibit.  So his, his objection at this point is a

          20   little bit late.

          21             I do agree that this is hearsay, but you are

          22   allowed to include hearsay evidence in the record of the

          23   proceeding and rely on it if it is substantiated by

          24   other evidence throughout the proceeding.

          25             MR. CURTIN:  And for the record, you don't
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           1   have to make a contemporaneous objection to questions on

           2   information which may be hearsay.  The objection is to

           3   entering it into the evidence.  It was not entered into

           4   evidence at the time.  And Mr. May, as I'm sure, will be

           5   entering it into evidence, and that is why I made the

           6   objection on it.

           7             But we'll -- that's a legal objection.  That's

           8   for a higher court than you and I.

           9             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Actually I think

          10   Commissioner Brown entered it into the record.

          11             Okay.  Well, it sounds like we entered 332

          12   into the record.

          13             Commissioner Brown, thank you.

          14             And anything else for this witness that needs

          15   to be entered into the record?

          16             MR. CURTIN:  Exhibits, I think KK-1 through

          17   KK-4, which was attached to his prefiled, are

          18   Exhibits 132 through 135 of the Comprehensive Exhibit

          19   List.  And I would like to enter those into the record.

          20             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  And that's 136?

          21             MR. CURTIN:  I think it's 132 through 135, if

          22   I have -- or excuse me.  No.  136 through 139.  Excuse

          23   me.  Ms. Kurz's is 132 through 135.

          24             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  136, 137, 138, 139, we'll

          25   enter that into the record as well.
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           1             (Exhibits 136, 137, 138, and 139 admitted into

           2   the record.)

           3             Okay.

           4             MR. JAEGER:  Chairman, I misheard.  There was

           5   a noise.  What did we decide on 332?  Are we waiting to

           6   admit that or is it deemed admitted and then we're going

           7   to get additional documentation tomorrow?

           8             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Actually I think you're

           9   probably -- Mr. Jaeger, the better way to handle that.

          10   Let's just wait until after we get the full

          11   documentation in and we'll enter that into the record

          12   tomorrow.

          13             MR. JAEGER:  Thank you, sir.

          14             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Any other thing for this

          15   witness?

          16             Seeing none, sir, thank you very much.

          17             THE WITNESS:  Thank you.

          18             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  YES, your next witness.

          19             MR. CURTIN:  Ms. Kurz, Kim Kurz.

          20             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Ms. Kurz, I take it you are

          21   not sworn; is that correct?

          22             THE WITNESS:  I am not.

          23             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Are there any other

          24   witnesses here that are going to be testifying that have

          25   not been sworn?  I don't see any.
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           1                           KIM KURZ

           2   was called as a witness on behalf of YES Communities

           3   and, having been duly sworn, testified as follows:

           4                         EXAMINATION

           5   BY MR. CURTIN:

           6        Q    Good morning, Ms. Kurz.  Can you please state

           7   your name for the record.

           8        A    Kim Kurz.

           9        Q    Who are you employed by?

          10        A    YES Communities.

          11        Q    And what's your position with YES Communities?

          12        A    I'm the Director of Special Projects.

          13        Q    And did you file 29 pages of prefiled

          14   testimony in this case?

          15        A    I did.

          16        Q    Do you have any revisions or clarifications to

          17   that prefiled testimony?

          18        A    I do not.

          19        Q    If I asked you the same questions today, would

          20   you give the same answers?

          21        A    Yes.

          22             MR. CURTIN:  I would like to insert -- I

          23   believe actually it's always inserted, but I would like

          24   to insert Ms. Kim Kurz's testimony into the record.  I

          25   think it was inserted last week.
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           1             MR. JAEGER:  I don't think it was inserted but

           2   it was stipulated to last week.  So we can insert it

           3   here.

           4             MR. CURTIN:  That would be fine.  I would like

           5   to insert it.

           6             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  We will enter the prefiled

           7   direct testimony into the record as though read.

           8   BY MR. CURTIN:

           9        Q    And you are sponsoring four exhibits, KK-1

          10   through KK-4, which are Composite Exhibits 132 through

          11   135?

          12        A    Yes.

          13        Q    Do you have any revisions to those exhibits?

          14        A    I do not.

          15

          16

          17

          18

          19

          20

          21

          22

          23

          24

          25
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           1   BY MR. CURTIN:

           2        Q    Would you like to summarize your testimony?

           3        A    I would.  Thank you.

           4        Q    Please proceed.

           5        A    Ladies and gentlemen, Chairman, Commissioners,

           6   thank you for this opportunity to summarize my testimony

           7   regarding the increase requested by Aqua Utilities to be

           8   imposed to the ratepayers of Arredondo Farms in

           9   Gainesville, Florida.

          10             My name is Kim Kurz.  I'm the Director of

          11   Special Projects for YES Communities.

          12             The ratepayers at Arredondo Farms are also our

          13   residents.  The issues with Aqua are extreme, unusual,

          14   and nothing like anything that we've experienced at YES.

          15   They have impacted our residents' ability to pay their

          16   bills and stay in the community.  And for no other

          17   reason, that is why we had to intervene in this case.

          18             The 93% rate increase Aqua implemented in 2009

          19   was the tipping point for our Arredondo residents.  It

          20   was the point when the product and service became no

          21   longer worth the price.  That is when we started to

          22   experience an overwhelming number of complaints about

          23   Aqua.  It is when the problem -- it is not when the

          24   problem began, but when the problem became inequitable.

          25             I began to research the issues and visited
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           1   with many residents.  Please let me explain what I

           2   found.  Above and beyond the extremely high rates, I

           3   found chronic billing issues which make resident bills

           4   even higher.  As a matter of fact, I believe billing

           5   errors are happening at Arredondo at a much higher

           6   frequency than in Aqua's billing system as a whole.

           7             Examples of errors you will find in my

           8   testimony are:  New customer accounts not being set up

           9   timely, and so therefore their first bills cover many

          10   months; new customers set up on the wrong site address,

          11   again, not receiving a bill for many months; customers

          12   with no base sewer charge; customers with no sewer or

          13   water usage charges; customers charged incorrectly on

          14   the highest usage rate tier, again, incorrectly; meters

          15   or readers not functioning properly, registering zero

          16   for a long period of time; and meter swaps and exchanges

          17   not noted in their billing system.

          18             Each one of these issues requires our customer

          19   to track down the issue with numerous calls to customer

          20   service, resulting in their lost time and frustration.

          21   Then, once that is corrected, these issues result in a

          22   minimum charge, back charge of $400, and often over a

          23   thousand dollars in back charges.  This results in even

          24   higher monthly bills that our customers just can't

          25   afford, and many have been moving out.  So Aqua's own
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           1   errors results in water shutoffs, unaffordable payment

           2   plans, resident move outs, and higher bad debt at

           3   Arredondo Farms for Aqua.

           4             Errors can happen in any system.  I realize

           5   that.  However, the frequency and chronic nature of

           6   those that I found at Arredondo are extreme.  Their

           7   customer service representatives are unable to handle

           8   the problems professionally, and Aqua has not

           9   successfully implemented necessary safeguards to prevent

          10   them.

          11             Our YES staff has spent countless hours trying

          12   to resolve Aqua's customer problems and to get Aqua's

          13   management to respond.  It was not until we intervened

          14   in this case that Aqua showed any signs of listening.

          15   Some progress has been made through the YES/Aqua joint

          16   task force.  However, I respectfully ask that you keep

          17   Aqua on a formal monitoring program in order to ensure

          18   their cooperation continues, especially since Aqua's

          19   national customer service manager deems an increase from

          20   8 to 40 residents who testify from 2009 to 2011 is an

          21   improvement.

          22             Another problem I heard frequently is the rude

          23   and disrespectful customer service our residents have

          24   received when they call about their service or billing

          25   problems.  I've heard many stories of horrible comments
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           1   and treatment, and I find no reason to discount them.

           2   However, I can only share my own personal experience.

           3             I called the 1-800 number because we were sent

           4   to collections.  YES was sent to collections by Aqua on

           5   some of our final bills on the homes that we own.  I

           6   showed in our system that all of those were paid.  On my

           7   first call to the customer service phone number, I was

           8   told by the representative that they experience problems

           9   with write-off accounts frequently, and the

          10   representative would research the account and call me

          11   back.  I did not receive a call back.  I called two

          12   other times, got the representative's voice mail, and no

          13   return phone call.

          14             So I started over again, and I called the

          15   1-800 number line again.  The new representative

          16   listened to my issue again, looked on the computer.  We

          17   had discussion regarding the address where the bill was

          18   actually sent.  And when -- it seemed to me when the

          19   representative realized it was not our address, she

          20   asked me to hold.  The representative did not return to

          21   the line.  I was on hold for 15 minutes before I gave

          22   up.

          23             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  And that's your five

          24   minutes.

          25             THE WITNESS:  If I could finish, please.  I'm
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           1   very close to the end, and I have one other small issue

           2   that I think is very important.

           3             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  I think maybe you can handle

           4   it in redirect.

           5             MR. CURTIN:  We open her for cross-

           6   examination.

           7             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.

           8             Any questions of the Intervenors?

           9             Mr. May.

          10             MR. MAY:  We have no questions.

          11             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Staff?

          12             MR. JAEGER:  Commissioners, during the break I

          13   got -- the parties have all agreed that the

          14   Comprehensive Exhibit List, they agree that 185 and 186

          15   may be stipulated, and 194 and 195 may be stipulated

          16   into the record.  And Staff is withdrawing 184 and 193.

          17   So Staff would move 185, 186, and 194 and 195 based on

          18   those stipulations.

          19             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  So we'll move 184 and 85

          20   into the record.

          21             MR. JAEGER:  I'm sorry.  Did I misspeak?  185,

          22   186, and 194, 195.

          23             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  194 and 195 all into the

          24   record.

          25             (Exhibits 185, 186, 194, and 195 admitted into
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           1   the record.)

           2             MR. JAEGER:  Okay.  With those exhibits being

           3   stipulated in, Staff has no cross.

           4             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Commissioners?

           5             Commissioner Brown.

           6             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  I just have a quick

           7   question for you.  You said that you recommend that this

           8   Commission order for Aqua to continue a formal

           9   monitoring program.  Are you aware that if this

          10   Commission goes ahead and orders them to continue a

          11   formal monitoring program, that the company may be

          12   allowed to recover their prudently incurred costs

          13   associated with that monitoring program?

          14             THE WITNESS:  I'm sorry.  I don't understand

          15   the question.

          16             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  You recommend that this

          17   Commission continue the formal monitoring program.  If

          18   we do that, I want to make sure, are you aware that the

          19   company may be allowed to recover their prudently

          20   incurred costs associated with that?

          21             THE WITNESS:  I see what you're saying.  I

          22   certainly don't want to see our Arredondo ratepayers who

          23   are at the highest band and very inequitable take any

          24   more burden.  You know, YES Communities' position is

          25   that we would like to see the problem solved.  And from
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           1   our experience, we tried to do that outside of this.

           2   This is not the money that we would like to spend on the

           3   property.  As a matter of fact, we can't allocate this

           4   to the property.  It's inequitable.

           5             So, you know, to answer your question, I would

           6   not like to see the ratepayers at Arredondo take any

           7   further burden.  I would like to see, and YES would like

           8   to see the problem solved.  So whatever way we can keep

           9   Aqua cooperating is what I'm asking from the Commission.

          10             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  Okay.  Thank you.

          11             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Commissioner Balbis.

          12             COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

          13   I just have one quick question.

          14             You mentioned that once YES became an

          15   intervenor in this case that Aqua started, I think you

          16   said, paying attention to you.

          17             THE WITNESS:  Yes, sir.

          18             COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  Can you give an example

          19   of that or --

          20             THE WITNESS:  Yes.  When I started working on

          21   the issue and found many, many problems when I visited

          22   the community and a very high frequency of problems, I

          23   started, as Aqua has asked us to, with the 1-800 number

          24   to, to ask what, what my next steps are, their manager,

          25   the person on the line.  And I even spoke to other folks
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           1   in their management, line of management, and kept being

           2   redirected to the 1-800 line.

           3             So at YES, we tried very, very hard to get

           4   management's attention on this informally and got

           5   nowhere.  So it was not until we came to the hearings

           6   here that we were listened to and were, you know,

           7   receiving phone calls back from the, from Aqua's

           8   representatives to start working on the problem.  And

           9   that's when the task force started to -- we started

          10   having discussions about having the task force.

          11             COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  Okay.  Thank you.

          12             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Commissioner Balbis.

          13             I'm sorry.  Brisé.

          14             COMMISSIONER BRISÉ:  No problem.

          15             Thank you for your testimony this morning.  A

          16   lot of people have testified, and I haven't heard anyone

          17   who has actually interacted with someone on the customer

          18   service line.  And so you said that you experienced a

          19   call or a few calls.  I want to know if you found that

          20   the service was inappropriate in terms of rudeness and

          21   things of that nature.

          22             THE WITNESS:  I think being put on hold

          23   purposely and not coming back is, in my book, you know,

          24   very rude.

          25             I have been, you know, cut off or those types
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           1   of things.  But, you know, that's, that's the extreme

           2   nature of my own personal experience.  You know, I've

           3   heard far worse stories.

           4             And I know that this Commission has asked

           5   several witnesses, people testifying, about why they

           6   think it's heavier in some areas and not in others.  And

           7   my hypothesis, for what it's worth, is that it's because

           8   we're having more problems.  We are having a large

           9   number of problems.  And, again, it's when that tipping

          10   point happens where, you know, the quality and the high

          11   rate and the billing problems are no longer equitable.

          12             And so I believe the customer service

          13   representatives, as a matter of fact, I have a lot of

          14   empathy for them, because I think they are experiencing

          15   a large number of phone calls from some areas, and

          16   that's frustrating.  And they're not equipped with the

          17   nine different, you know, ways that a bill can, you

          18   know, be an error, so they're not equipped with the

          19   ability to solve the customers' problems.

          20             Do I think they want to?  Absolutely.  Who

          21   wouldn't?  But I think the frequency to which they're

          22   getting called and the frustration on even trying to

          23   figure out what the problem is is frustrating.  And by

          24   the time -- you know, from a customer's standpoint,

          25   you've called two or three times because the first two
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           1   didn't help you, that customer is also frustrated.

           2             So, you know, I think we need to listen to

           3   where we do have the problems, and not assume globally

           4   that Aqua doesn't have a problem.

           5             COMMISSIONER BRISÉ:  Thank you.  One other

           6   question about the actual experience through the phone

           7   system.

           8             THE WITNESS:  Uh-huh.

           9             COMMISSIONER BRISÉ:  When you placed the call,

          10   because I asked this question earlier about how calls

          11   get routed, and I think that's very important to me.  So

          12   when you called, you called because you had a billing

          13   issue.  In the IVR, did it ask you did you have a

          14   billing issue, and then you, you --

          15             THE WITNESS:  I don't recall that.

          16             COMMISSIONER BRISÉ:  -- hit a particular

          17   number to go that route?

          18             THE WITNESS:  No.  My, my recall on the phone

          19   call is that it rang and I got a representative.  That's

          20   my recall.

          21             COMMISSIONER BRISÉ:  It rang and you got a

          22   representative.

          23             THE WITNESS:  Uh-huh.

          24             COMMISSIONER BRISÉ:  So there was no initial

          25   steps to the call.
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           1             THE WITNESS:  I don't believe there was.

           2             COMMISSIONER BRISÉ:  Okay.  Thank you.

           3             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  I guess a continuation of

           4   that question.  Are you calling on the same toll-free

           5   number that everybody else calls in on, or do you have a

           6   different number that goes directly to --

           7             THE WITNESS:  YES Communities is a customer of

           8   Aqua.  We pay bills on every, you know, vacant home.  It

           9   goes into our name.  And that, the number on the bill is

          10   what I called.

          11             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.  Now do you know, if

          12   the -- you being a business and not being a resident, do

          13   you know if it's the same number as the residents call

          14   or if it's a different number?

          15             THE WITNESS:  I believe -- certainly the bill

          16   looks exactly the same.  Whether I've compared them -- I

          17   have not compared them.  I don't get a resident bill.  I

          18   am assuming it's the same number.

          19             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.

          20             Commissioner Edgar.

          21             COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  Thank you.

          22             During your comments and your answers you, and

          23   your summary, I believe, you made a couple of references

          24   to a YES/Aqua joint task force.  Can you elaborate on

          25   who that is, what that is, and what they either have
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           1   done or are doing?

           2             THE WITNESS:  Sure.  Again, after, after we

           3   showed up at the last hearing and spoke, we were

           4   approached by the previous president, Aqua president.

           5   So it took a while for it to form with the change,

           6   Aqua's president change.  But Rick Fox is on the task

           7   force, as well as Troy Rendell, Sue Chambers.  I'm sure

           8   I'm forgetting somebody.  I think Kim Joyce.  Several of

           9   those that I talked to prior to the hearing.  Myself,

          10   Shawn Harpin, Jeremy Gray, and Mallory Starling from

          11   our, from YES Communities.

          12             COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  And you have regular

          13   meetings or discussions?  Is there set goals,

          14   specific --

          15             THE WITNESS:  The number one set goal is to

          16   reduce billing errors.  That's been our number one set

          17   goal.  I believe we've met three times since the last

          18   hearing.  I believe that we have, frankly, put together,

          19   you know, a number of things that we highlighted.  Our

          20   billing errors, I think we have been able to jointly

          21   improve specifically the new customer, how the new

          22   customer is handled by implementing a specific

          23   Aqua-generated application.

          24             And I think that's helped them not question

          25   our, our customers quite as much to, to get started, and
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           1   rely on our leasing and closing process that we, that we

           2   do at Arredondo to, to get the proper information to set

           3   up the customer account properly.

           4             COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  In your written testimony

           5   you talk about, looking at page 6, you talk about -- and

           6   it says that many residents were not being charged usage

           7   for water or wastewater for over a year, resulting in

           8   back usage charges.  What time -- is this testimony here

           9   referring to the time period of 2010?

          10             THE WITNESS:  The billing errors on the --

          11             COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  Yes.  Specifically about,

          12   not -- I see billing errors as a much larger category,

          13   and perhaps this issue of no bill for a period of time,

          14   and then a bill that covers usage over a period of

          15   months as maybe one category of billing error.

          16             THE WITNESS:  Sure.  I can only testify for

          17   the ones that I've looked at.  I don't have further

          18   history on that.  But I have seen them, that particular

          19   issue in 2010 and 2011.

          20             COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  You use the phrase in

          21   this written testimony, I quote, line 12, "This is

          22   clearly a predatory practice by Aqua."  That sentence to

          23   me makes a statement of intent, and the phrase "error"

          24   to me does not imply intent.  So these instances that

          25   you describe here, is it your testimony that it is your
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           1   opinion that they are purposeful?

           2             THE WITNESS:  It is my opinion that, that they

           3   stopped working on the problem and deemed Arredondo

           4   customers the problem.  And I think that that

           5   disconnect, it was certainly not their intention to

           6   resolve but to continue the conflict.  So I think

           7   there's some intention when you just say, well, that's

           8   Arredondo and they're the problem.  So I think that's

           9   where the intention is.

          10             COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  Okay.  Thank you.

          11             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  YES.

          12             MR. CURTIN:  Thank you, Chairman.

          13                         EXAMINATION

          14   BY MR. CURTIN:

          15        Q    Ms. Kurz, I want to ask you a little bit about

          16   what Commissioner Edgar and Commissioner Balbis talked

          17   about, the task force.  This task force was something

          18   that YES was trying to get together even before they

          19   intervened in this action?

          20        A    That's correct.

          21        Q    And what was the response to Aqua when you

          22   talked to their management, their 1-800 number, about

          23   getting some sort of discussion going on on these

          24   continuous billing problems before you intervened?

          25        A    We were told solutions such as, well, they
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           1   could put, you know, a flier in the customer mail with

           2   the bill.  They could, you know, do those types of, just

           3   general, let the customer know kind of, types of things.

           4   And there was no joint cooperation to, to recognize the,

           5   what the root causes were.

           6        Q    And the actual task force which was formed,

           7   that was formed after you came here for the PAA hearing?

           8        A    Correct.

           9        Q    And was that formed after the actual appeal of

          10   that PAA order and YES's cross-petition of that appeal?

          11        A    I believe so.

          12        Q    Have you had any issues on the actual task

          13   force of cooperation and things like that?

          14        A    Yes.  We've had some departure of the

          15   procedure that we put in place and all agreed upon.

          16   We've had, we've been given -- and I say this in true

          17   appreciation of the progress we've made.  I do not want

          18   to take that away from the efforts of everybody on the

          19   task force.  But it just, it's inherent to the, you

          20   know, the -- there needs to be a continued focus,

          21   because, you know, you take your eye off the ball, it

          22   seems like another, another issue happens.

          23             We were also given some kind of upper level

          24   customer service representatives, and some of those have

          25   been -- and I've not had this personal experience, but
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           1   some of those representatives have not been completely

           2   helpful with Mallory Starling.

           3        Q    Mallory Starling is the actual on-site

           4   manager?

           5        A    Yes.  She's the one managing the details.

           6        Q    And many people, many of your residents, they

           7   go to Mallory when they have complaints about Aqua?

           8        A    Absolutely.  She deals with them daily.

           9   Uh-huh.

          10             MR. CURTIN:  No further questions.

          11             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Thank you.  Do we have

          12   anything to put into the record for this, or did we

          13   already do this through Staff?

          14             MR. CURTIN:  Yes.  I believe Exhibits 132

          15   through 135 have already been put in.  But if they have

          16   not, I would like to put them in now.  But I think they

          17   were put in last week.

          18             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  132, 3, 4, 5?

          19             MR. CURTIN:  Yes.

          20             MR. JAEGER:  And they have been already

          21   admitted.

          22             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.

          23             Ma'am, thank you.  Thank for your testimony.

          24             THE WITNESS:  You bet.

          25             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Mr. Jaeger, I have our next
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           1   witness as being Paul Stallcup.

           2             MR. JAEGER:  We have 15 stipulated witnesses

           3   that we need to insert before Mr. Stallcup.

           4             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.

           5             MR. JAEGER:  And the first one is -- and

           6   basically we moved all the exhibits for the stipulated

           7   witnesses already, and we took six witnesses out of turn

           8   and their exhibits have been moved in.

           9             So, and something I want to just do right now.

          10   Staff's intent was to move all stipulated exhibits as

          11   listed on the Comprehensive Exhibit List, and we went

          12   over them real quickly at the beginning of the hearing.

          13   I just wanted to make sure that all stipulated exhibits

          14   were moved in case I somehow inadvertently left one out.

          15   And so we would want to do that now.

          16             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.  So which ones do you

          17   not think that were moved?

          18             MR. JAEGER:  Well, I think we moved them all,

          19   but just as a, sort of a cover-all, is if we

          20   accidentally left a stipulated exhibit out, that it

          21   would be included and then moved.

          22             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Let the record show we will

          23   move all stipulated exhibits into the record.

          24             MR. JAEGER:  Okay.  And now I think we can

          25   just go through the 15 staff witnesses and have their
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           1   testimony inserted.

           2             Ms. -- just an explanation.  Ms. Helton is

           3   saying, though, what about the other three witnesses of

           4   YES?  Their testimony was in the service hearing at

           5   Gainesville, and there's nothing else to be inserted.

           6   So, although they're listed at this point, they are

           7   actually coming in under the Gainesville service hearing

           8   testimony.

           9             Mr. Curtin, do you agree with that?

          10             MR. CURTIN:  Yes.  And I believe the testimony

          11   is in there in Gainesville and the exhibits were

          12   attached and put into evidence already.

          13             MR. JAEGER:  Okay.  And one other thing.

          14   There's an Exhibit 140, which is duplicative of service

          15   hearing Exhibit 14.  We've moved service hearing 14.  So

          16   140 is duplicative and I think it can also be withdrawn

          17   or just not admitted.

          18             MR. CURTIN:  Agreed.  It is duplicative.

          19             (Exhibit 140 withdrawn.)

          20             MR. JAEGER:  Okay.  Now we can go to the 15

          21   Staff witnesses.

          22             Angela Chelette, and we would move her

          23   testimony into the record as though read.

          24             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Let's just go ahead and --

          25             MR. JAEGER:  Okay.  All 15 at once.  Chelette,

                         FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

                                                                        1342

           1   Yingling, Walker, Daugherty, Harrison, Loughlin,

           2   Schwarb, Lott, Piltz, Rauth, Eck, Dodson, Rodriguez,

           3   Hicks, and Welch.

           4             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Let me check to make sure

           5   that there's no objection to entering all those

           6   witnesses' direct testimony into the record as though

           7   read.

           8             MR. CURTIN:  No objection from YES.

           9             MS. CHRISTENSEN:  No objection.

          10             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.  We will enter all

          11   those direct testimonies into the record.
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